
JONES COUNTY
l.2th and Commercial

Anson, Texas

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018



Exhibit

A-1
B-1

c-1

c-2

c-3
c-4

D-1
D-2

E-1

E-2
E-3
E-4

F-1

F-2

F-3

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
ANNUAL F'INANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

TABLE OF'CONTENTS

INTRODII RY SECTION

List of Elected and Appointed Offrcials

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditor' s Report
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Required Supplementary Information)

BASIC F'INANCI STATEMENTS
Government Wide Statements:

Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Governmental Fund Financial Statements:
Balance Sheet
Reconciliation of the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net
Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance
Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Change in Fund Balance to the Statement of Activities
Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements :

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position

Notes to the Financial Statements
Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance- Budget and
Actual - General Fund
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios (TCDRS)
Schedule of Pension Contributions (TCDRS)
Notes to Schedule of Pension Contributions (TCDRS)

Combinins and Individual Schedules
Non-major Governmental Funds :

Combining Balance Sheet
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Agency Funds:

Combining Statement of Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Reports on Compliance and Internal Controls

Report on Compliance and Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting Based on an
Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing
Standards

Schedule of Findings and Responses

4

Page

20
21

6

8

23

24

25

26

28
29

30

55

56

57
58

60

70

80

82

84



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

H-1

STATISTICAL SECTION

Schedule of Delinquent Taxes Receivable
Miscellaneous Statistics

86

88

2



INTRODUCTORY SECTION

J



JONES COTJNTY, TEXAS

LIST OF D AND APPOINTED COUNTY OFFICIALS

December 3L.2018

Commissioners Court
Dale Spurgin
James Clawson
Steve LeFevre
Ross Davis
Joe Whitehorn

Judicial
Brooks Hagler

Law Enforcement
Greg Arnwine
Joe Edd Boaz
Chad Cowan
Danny Jimenez
Cheryl Guernsey

Fina ncial Administration
Gwen Bailey
Allison Pinkston
Amber Thompson
Gloria Little

Recordin Officials
Lacey Hansen
LeeAnn Jennings

County Judge
Precinct I Commissioner
Precinct 2 Commissioner
Precinct 3 Commissioner
Precinct 4 Commissioner

259th District Judge

County Sheriff
District Attorney
County Attorney

Constable
Justice of the Peace

County Auditor
Assistant County Auditor

Counfy Treasurer
Tax Assessor-Collector

District Clerk
County Clerk

4



FINANCIAL SECTION

5
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Certified Public Accountants

20 Southwest Third Street. PO Box 669 . Hamlin, Texas 79520. Tel: 325-576-2356 . Fax: 325-576-3525
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July 22,2019

Unmodified Report on Financial Statements lssued in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards and
Accompanied by Required Supplementary lnformation, Supplementary lnformation, and Other lnformation

lndependent Auditor's Report

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Gomprising
The Commissioners Gourt of Jones Gounty
Anson, Texas 79501

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of Jones County, Texas (the County) as of and for the year ended December 31,
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the County's basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Theproceduresselecteddependontheauditor'sjudgment,includingtheassessmentoftherisksofmaterial
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions
ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jones County,
Texas, as of December 31 ,2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.
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James E. Rodgers and Gompâhy, P.C.

Emphasis of Matter
As discussed in notes to the financial statements, in 2018, the County did not adopt new accounting guidance prescribed
by GASB 75 for other post-employment benefit plan (OPEB) due to no current participation by the County for insurance
plans for retirees for health or life insurance.

Other Matters
Req u i red S u ppl em e nta ry I nfo rm ati o n
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and
analysis, budgetary comparison information, and GASB 68 schedules for pension liabilities and contributions be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other lnformation
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the
Jones County, Texas's basic financial statements. The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our
opinion, the combining and individual non-major fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation
to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on this section.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards
ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated July 22, 2019, on our
consideration of the Jones County, Texas's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Sfandards in considering Jones County,
Texas's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Respectfully submitted,

E WNW-*NGry-t
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JONES COUI\TY, TEXAS

Founded 1881 - Area 937 Sq. Miles - County Seat Anson

Managementts Discussion and Analysis

In this section of the Annual Financial and Compliance Report, we, the administration of Jones County, Texas
discuss and analyze the County's financial performance for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2018. Please
read it in conjunction with the independent auditors'report which precedes this analysis and the County's Basic
Financial Statements which begin following this analysis.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The County's net position decreased by $96,573 as a result of this year's operations.

At December 3 1, 2018, the count¡r's net position was $10/37 ,324.

During the year, the County had expenses that were $8,894,293, this being $96,573 more than the
58,797,720 generated in charges for services, operating grants, other general revenues for all services.

At December 31,2018, the county was obligated in the amount of $7,884,475 for long-term liabilities.
Those long-term liabilities consisted of certificates of obligation and revenue bonds issued for the
acquisition of a new jail facility constructed by the Jones County Public Facilities Corporation (PFC), and
the net pension liability of the county.

The General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $3,817,112, increasing by $95,078.

The resources available for appropriation were $147,755 less than budgeted for in the General Fund.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The government-wide financial statements
include the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities (Exhibits A-l and B-1 in the Basic
Financial Statements section). These provide information about the activities of the County as a whole and
present a longer-term view of the County's property and debt obligations and other financial matters. They
reflect the flow of total economic resources in a manner similar to the financial reports of a business
enterprise.
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Fund financial statements (Series C, D and E Exhibits in the Basic Financial Statements section) report the
Count¡r's operations in more detail than the government-wide statements by providing information about the
County's most significant funds. For governmental activities, these statements tell how services were financed
in the short term as well as what resources remain for future spending. They reflect the flow of current
financial resources and supply the basis for intergovernmental revenue assessments and the appropriations
budget. For proprietary activities, fund financial statements tell how goods or services of the County were
sold to external customers and how the sales revenues covered the expenses of the goods or services. The
remaining statements, fiduciary statements, provide financial information about activities for which the County
acts solely as a trustee or agent.

The notes to the financial statements (the last document in the Basic Financial Statements section) provide
narrative explanations or additional data needed for full disclosure in the government-wide statements or the
fund financial statements.

The combining statements for non-major funds contain even more information about the Count¡l's individual
funds.

The following chart illustrates the required components of an annual financial report prepared in compliance
with current governmental accounting and reporting standards.

Annual Financial uired

ReconciliationStatement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

(accrual)
Wide Financial

Independent Auditor's Report

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
(Part of RSI)

Financial Statements for Three
Types

Sheet

of Revenues, Expenditures, and

in Fund Balance

Statement of Net Position
*Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and

Changes in Fund Equity
*Statement of Cash Flows

Fiduciary Funds (accrual)
*Statement of Net Position
*Statement of Changes in Net Position

Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplemental Information (RSI)
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Reportins the Countv as a Whole

The Støtement of Net Positíon and the Statement of Activities

The analysis of the County's overall financial condition and operations begins in the first part of the Basic
Financial Statements section. Its primary purpose is to show whether the County is better off or worse offas a
result of the year's activities. The Statement of Net Position includes all the CountSr's assets and liabilities at
the end of the year, while the Statement of Activities includes all the revenues and expenses generated by the
County's operations during the year. These apply the accrual basis of accounting which is the basis used by
private sector companies.

All ofthe current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless ofwhen cash is received or
paid. The County's revenues are divided into those provided by outside parties who share the costs of some
programs, such as revenues provided by user fees, licenses, permits, or revenues from other governments
(intergovernmental revenues), grants provided by the State of Texas (operating grants and contributions), or
property taxes and other miscellaneous revenues (general revenues). All the County's assets are reported
whether they serve the current year or future years. Liabilities are considered regardless of whether they must
be paid in the current or future years.

These two statements report the County's net position and changes in them. The County's net position (the
difference between assets and liabilities) provide one measure of the County's financial health, or financial
position. Over time, increases or decreases in the County's net position are one indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating. To fully assess the overall health of the County, however, you
should consider non-financial factors as well, such as changes in the County's population, its property tax base,
and the condition of the County's facilities and infrastructure.

In the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities, we divide the County into two kinds of
activities:

Governmental activities-All of the County's basic services are reported here, including general
adminishation, public safety, judicial, health and social services, and infrastructure (roads and bridges).
Property taxes, intergovernmental revenues, user fees, and state and federal grants finance most of these
activities.

Business-type activities-The County does not presently maintain business-type activities.

Reportinq the Countv's Most Siqnificant Funds

Fund Finøncial Støtemenls

The fund financial statements (which begin after the government wide statements) provide detailed
information about the most significant funds-not the County as a whole. Laws and contracts require the
County to establish some funds, such as potential grants received. The County's administration establishes
other funds to help it control and manage money for particular purposes (like juvenile probation activities).
The County utilizes two kinds of funds-governmental and proprietary. The proprietary type funds, such as
internal service funds, use a different accounting approach.

l0



Governmental funds-All of the Count¡r's basic services are reported in governmental funds. These funds
use the modified accrual basis of accounting (a method that measures the receipt and disbursement of cash
and all other financial assets that can be readily converted to cash) and report balances that are available for
future spending. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the County's
general operations and the basic services it provides. We describe the differences between governmental
activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) and governmental
funds in reconciliation schedules following each of the fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds-The County presently utilizes an pension trust proprietary type fund. In this type of fund,
the same accounting methods employed in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities is
used.

The Countv as Trustee

Reporting the County's Fiducíøry Responsibilities

The County is the trustee, or fiduciary, for various funds collected for other government entities such as the
State of Texas and various funds held for minors as required by court order. The County performs collection
activities and disburses such funds on a routine basis. All of the County's fiduciary activities are reported in a
separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position (Exhibits E-l and E-2). We exclude these resources from the
County's other financial statements because the County cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The
County is only responsible for ensuring that the assets reported in these funds are collected and distributed
properly, and that such collection activities comply with the intergovernmental contract for collection with
those entities and individuals.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The County has presented net position measurements and changes in net position for previous and current
years. Our analysis focuses on the net position (Table I) and changes in net position (Table II) of the Count¡z's
governmental and business-type activities for the previous and current years.

Net position of the County's governmental activities decreased by $96,573. Unrestricted net position - the part
of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt
covenants, enabling legislation, or other legal requirements - was $8,040,743 at the current year end. The
increase in total net position can be broken down into the following components: (l) total governmental
revenues exceeded expenditures by $77,457;(2)the County had capital outlay expenditures of $208,289 and
debt service principal payments on long-term debt of $378,499; (3) $633,551 in current depreciation expense;
(4) $0 in proceeds from additional long term debt financing, (5) $379,156 miscellaneous adjustments and (6)
5506,423 in additional expense with the current year GASB 68 reporting of the net pension liability.

Table I
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type

Activities Totals
2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018

Current and othel assets

Capital assets

Deferred outflows - Pension Plan

$10,367,650

9,154,337

1,484,779

s10,826,264

8,695,818

13s,133

$o

0

0

$0

0

0

$10,367,650

9,154337

r484.779

s10,826,264

8,695,818

135.133

Total assets and deferred outflows s21,006,7 66 $19,657,215 $0 $0 $21.006.766 S19.657.215
Long-term liabilities

Other liabilities

Deferred inflows - Pension Plan

s9,757,629

302,503

112,737

$7,884,475

374,174

661,242

$0

0

0

$0

0

0

s9,757,629

302,503

n2.737

s7,884,475

374,t74

66t242
Total liabilities and deferred inflows $10.172.869 38.919.891 $0 $0 $r0.r72.869 $8.919.891

Net Position:

Net Investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

$1,961,155

628,185

8244.5s7

s1,947,082

749,499

8.040.743

$o $0

0

0

0

0

s1,961,155

628,185

8244,ss7

s1,947,092

749499

8,040,743

Total Net Position $10.833.897 510.737.324 $0 s0 $10,833,897 510.737,324
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Table II
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

Changes in Net Position

Governmental
Activities

Business-Type
Activities Totals

2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018
Program Revenues:

Charges for Services

Operating & capital grants and contributions

General Revenues:

Maintenance and operalions taxes

Debt service taxes

lnvestment Earnings

Miscellaneous (Fines, etc.)

4,521,431

613,103

5,963

293.064

s1,388,570

2,337,t44
$8 16,574

1,549,585

4,834,410

632,514

6,087

958.550

$o $o

00

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$1,388,570

2,337,144

4,521,431

613,103

5,963

293.064

s816,574

1,549,585

4,934,410

632,514

6,087

958.550

Total Revenues $9.159.275 58.797.720 $0 $0 $9,159,275 58,797,720
Expenses

General Government - Administration

General Government - Fina¡rcial

General Government - Facilities Management

Public Safety

Judicial and Legal

Health and Human Services

Infrastructure and Environmental Services

Community and Economic Deve lopment

Interest on Long-Term Debt

$750,628

204,308

411,631

2,888,457

1,437,197

194,516

2,290,068

I 55,866

s61,632

$408,739

184,487

500,655

2,209,2Q0

1,377,206

269,287

2,470,273

176,884

359,428

$o

0

0

0

n

0

0

0

0

$o

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

$408,739

184,487

500,655

2,2og,2oo

1,377,206

269,287

2,470,273

176,894

359,428

s750,628

204,308

411,63r

2,888,457

1,437,187

194,516

2,290,068

155,866

561.632

Total Exnenses $7,955,159 $8,894,293 $0 $0 $7,955,159 $8,894,293

Increase in net position before

transfers and special items

Transfers

Extraordinary And Special Items

Prior Period Adj ustment

Net Position at Janua¡y I

($96,s73)

0

0

0

10.833.897

$1,204,116

0

tt

25,184

9.604.597

$0 $0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

st,204,116
0

0

25,184

9.604.s97

($96,573)

0

0

0

10.833.897
Total Net Position $10,833,897 510.737,324 $0 $0 $10.833.897 910.737.324

The County's total revenues were $8,797,720. The total cost of all programs and services were $8,894,293.

The County took action this year to control cost increases and to keep its fund balance at an acceptable level.

o The County maintained salary and wage costs for staff at a slight increase from prior years, providing
for only minimal cost of living raises.

o Other budget categories were maintained at prior year levels.

The cost of all governmental activities this year was $8,894,293.

13



THB COUNTY'S FUNDS

As the County completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented on the balance sheet in Exhibit C-1)
reported a combined fund balance of $7,181,925, which is more than last year's total of $7,104,468. The
following chart illustrates the County's revenue by source for the last two fiscal years.

JONES COUI{TY, TEXAS

REVENUES BY SOURCE
Year 2017 Year 20'|.8

Property Taxes
lntergovernmental Reven ue & Grants
Gharges for Services
Licenses & Permits
Fines
lnvestment Earnings
Other Revenue

$5,313,191
2,432,249

842,391
298,470
247,708

5,963
201,572

ç4,827,478
I,549,585

816,575
360,693
300,042

6,087
295,969

Total $9,341,543 $8,156,429

Revenues by Source

Oher Revenue

lnvestnent Earnings

Fines

Licenses & Permits
lYear 201 I

aYeat 2017

Charges for Services

lntergovernmental
Revenue & Grants

Property Taxes

$0 $1,000 $2,000 $3,000 $4,000 $5,000 $6,000

Thousands
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The County's operating expenditures largely consist of personal services (both salaries and benefits) cost for
personnel, and purchased and contracted services. The following chart illustrates the significance of the
Count¡r's expenditures by object.

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT

Year 2017 Year 2018
Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Purchased Services
Supplies and Materials
Utilities, Repairs, and Rentals
lnsurance Other Than Employee Benefits
Communicat¡ons
Travel
Other Operating Expenditures
Debt Service - Principal and lnterest
CapitalOutlay

$3,012,442
1,469,429

578,840
599,590
381,275

81,924
71,150
58,199

954,490
738,612
210,927

$2,936,713
1,445,265

745,477
480,121
265,435

88,584
72,470
46,351

1,109,115
708,611
208,289

Total $8,156,878 $8,106,431

Capital qrtlay

Debt Seruice - Prinipd and lntsest

0üìer0peraüng É&enditures

Travd

ømur¡catons

lns uEnce oúìer TlEn Énpbyee BerÞf¡b

LJtiliües, Repa¡rs, and Rentds

Supdies and l\,4atsials

Purchasd Seruics

Erìployee Benefits

Salades and Wages

$0 $500,000 $1,000,000 $1,500,000 $2,000,000 $2,500,000 $3,000,000 s3,500,000

I Year 2018 EYear 2017
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Budset Amendments

Over the course of the year, the Commissioner's Court revised the County's budget several times, although
none of those amendments were significant.

Capital Assets

At the end of the current fiscal year, the County had $18,084,183 invested in capital assets, including land,
buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and roads and bridges infrastructure. This amount
represents an increase in capital assets of $104,222 (9208,289 in additions less $104,067 in retirements).

This year's major additions included:

Additional Land Cost

Boiler Room Vent Fan

Freezer 3 Door Solid Everest Model

Land Pride RC56l0 Rotary Cutter

Boom Mower

John Deere 700J Crawler Dozer

2007 Western Star

2018 Cheverolet Impala

2018 Ford Taurus

2018 Ford Taurus

TOTAL ADDITIONS
Deletions

NET ADDITIONS

$ 4,997

8,950

5,796

10,000

6,978

59,208

24,522

23,109

32,365

32,365

$ 208,289

104,067

$ 104,222

Additional information about the County's capital assets is presented in Note IV.F to the financial statements

Debt

The County's long-term debt (excluding the net pension liability) at December 31,2018:

The County also has current matured unpaid principal and interest on Revenue Bonds of $145,000 in principal
and $54,615 in interest. These payments are to be paid from leased beds from the new jail facility.

Date Issued Debt Payable To Asset Purthased Debt Balance 2018 Pavments

212212012 Certificate of Obligæion Bonds New Jail Facility

212212012 2012 Revenue Bonds New Jail Facility

91912013 John Deere Financial JD Motorgraders

Unamortized DiscounlPremium on Bonds New Jail Facility

Accrued Interest On Long-Term Debt as of l2l3ll20l8
TOTALS g 6,782,574 S 656,777

s 5,770,000 $

785,000

135,172

92,402

480,250

25,000

151,527

N/A
N/A
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BT]DGETS AND RATES

The County's officials considered many factors when setting the year 2019 budget and tax rates. Some of
those factors were the economy, population data, property tax base valuation, and other factors. These
indicators were taken into account when adopting the General Fund budget for 2019. The County's General
Fund budgeted expenditures for 2019 totaled 55,169,889. This represents an increase of only $76,006 from
the final amended year 2018 budget. The County will use its revenues to finance programs and services it
currently offers. The County has added no major new programs or services to the 2019 budget.

CONTACTING THE COUNTY'S FINA¡ICIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, elected officials, and investors and
creditors with a general overview of the County's finances and to show the County's accountability for the
money it receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
County Judge's office at Jones County Judge, PO Box 148, Anson, Texas 79501; (325) 823-3741.
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

EXHIBITA-I

Primary Govemment
Data

Control

Codes
Governmental

Activities

ASSETS
l0l0 Cash and Cash Equivalents
1050 Taxes Receivable, Net
1260 Due from Other Governments
1390 Due from Others

Capital Assets:

l7l0 Land Purchase and Improvements
1720 Infrastructure,Net
1730 Buildings, Net
1750 Furniture and Equipoment, Net

1000 Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
1997 Deferred Outflow Related to Pension Plan

1500 Total Defered Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
2010 Accounts Payable
2120 Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured
2140 Accrued Interest Payable

Noncurrent Liabilities:

2501 Debt Due Within One Year
2502 Bonds Payable - Noncurrent
2580 Net Pension Liability

2000 Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
2602 Deferued Inflow Related to Pension Plan

2500 Total Deferred Inflows ofResources

NET POSITION
3200 Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for:
3810 Restricted for State and Federal Grants
3820 Restricted for State Fee Funds
3860 Restricted for Debt Service
3900 Unrestricted

3000 Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 6,712,568
3,362,567

685,402
65,727

58,564
8l 8,074

6,407,657
t,4t1,523

19,522,082

I 35,133

135,133

82,ts7
145,000

t47,0t7

240,000
6,450,172
1,194,303

8,258,649

661,242

66t,242

r,947,082

24t,814
337,246
170,439

8,040,743

$ 10,737,324



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2018

EXHIBIT B-I

Net (Expense)
Revenue and

Changes in Net
Position

Program RevenuesData

Control

Codes

Expenses

Charges for
Services

Operating

Grants and

Contributions

Primary Gov.

Govemmetal

Activities

Primary Government:

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES :
roo General Government
r20 Judicial
r30 Executive
rao Elections
rso Financial Administration
reo Other General Government Functions
2oo Public Safety
230 Corrections
2eo Other Public Safety
3'o Highways and Streets
4oo Health and Welfare
720 Interest on Debt
7eo Other Debt Service

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

Data
Control
Codes

$ 7s0,628 $
1,437,187

107,222

48,644
204,308
4tt,63t

2,4r5,862
I 87,559

285,036
2,290,068

t94,516
560,587

1,04s

$

310,298 108,471

30,992

318,464

867,767

123,967

187,812 4r8,388

$ (750,628)
( r,018,418)

(76,230)
(48,644)
lt4,t56

(411,631)
( I,548,095)

(63,s92)
(285,036)

( r,683,868)
(194,516)
(560,587)

(1,045)

$ 8,894,293 $ 816,574 $ 1,549,585 (6,s25,134)

5010

501 I

5l 80

5700

5800

General Revenues:

Taxes:

Property Taxes, Levied for General Purposes
Propeúy Taxes, Levied for Debt Service

Other Taxes
Licenses, Permits, Charges Services & Misc Revenue
Investment Earnings

Total General Revenues

Change in Net Position

Net Position- Beginning

4,834,410
632,514

4,874
9s3,676

6,087

6,431,56t

(e6,s73)

10,833,897

$ 10,737,324Net Position - Ending

The notes to the flrnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-I
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

DECEMBER 3I,2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

General

Fund

Other

Funds

Total

Governmental

Funds

l0l0
I 050

l05l
1260

I 300

I 390

I 000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable
Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)
Due from Other Governments
Due from Other Funds
Due from Others

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured
Accrued Interest Payable
Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction
Retirement of Long-Term Debt
Other Restricted Fund Balance
Capital Expenditures for Equipment
Other Committed Fund Balance
Other Assigned Fund Balance
Unassigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

$ 6,312,032 $ 4,668,678 $ 10,9g0,710

s 45,942 S

$ 3,483,301 $
2,586,619
(137,640)
lgg,649
154,446
26,659

3,229,267 S

962,103
(48,514)
486,753

39,069

6,712,569
3,548,721
(186,r54)

685,402
154,446
65,727

2010

2t20
2t40
2300

2000

260t

2600

3450

3480

3490

3 530

3545

3590

3600

3000

36,215 $
145,000

54,615
154,446

82,157
145,000

54,615
154,446

45,942 390,276 436,219

2,448,979 gl3,5gg 3,362,567

2,448,978 gl3,5gg 3,362,567

3,817,112

24t,8t4
170,439
337,246
405,409

2,188,667
21,239

3,817,rt2

24l,gl4
170,439
337,246
405,409

2,188,667
21,238

3,817,112 3,364,913 7,191,925

4000 Total Liabilities, Defened Inflows & Fund Balances$ 6,312,032 $ 4,66g,67g $ 10,9g0,710

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-2
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

Total tr'und Balances - Governmental Funds

The County does not use internal service funds to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as self-insurance and printing, to appropriate functions in other
governmental funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds would be
included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets. The net effect of
this consolidation is to increase (decrease) net position.

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-term liabilities,
including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the curent period, and,
therefore are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The net effect of including the
beginning balances for capital assets (net ofdepreciation) and long-term debt in the
governmental activities is to increase (decrease) net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures
in the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital
assets and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements.
The net effect of including the current year capital outlays and debt principal
payments is to increase (decrease) net position.

In prior years the County has implemented GASB 68 for the TCDRS Pension plan.
The County has reported their net pension liability in the Government Wide
Statement of Net Position. The items reported as a result of this implementation
included a net pension liability of $1,194,303, a deferred resource inflow of
$135,133 and a Deferred Resource Outflow of $661,242. The net effect of these was
to decrease the ending net position.

The current year depreciation expense increases accumulated depreciation. The net
effect ofthe current year's depreciation is to decrease net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, eliminating interfund transactions,
reclassifuing the proceeds of bond sales as an increase in bonds payable, and
recognizing the liabilities associated with maturing long-term debt and interest, The
net effect ofthese reclassifications and recognitions is to increase (decrease) net
position.

Net Position of Governmental Activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 7,181,925

-0-

1,982,739

586,789

(1,720,412)

(633,551)

3,339,835

$ 10,737,324



EXHIBIT C-3
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

General

Fund

Other

Funds

Total

Governmental

Funds

5l l0
5180

5 190

s200
s300

5400

55 l0
561 0

5700

I 03,070
s39,069
103,096

3,722
203,408

REVENUES

5020

Taxes:
Propefi Taxes
Other Taxes
Penalty and Interest on Taxes

Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
Charges for Services
Fines
Investment Earnings
Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:
Current:

0100 GeneralGovernment
0120 Judicial
0130 Executive
0140 Elections
ol50 FinancialAdministration
0190 Other General Government Functions
0200 Public Safety
0230 Corrections
0290 Other Public Safety

Public Works:
03 l0 Highways and Streets
0400 Health and welfare

Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures

I 100 Excess ofRevenues Over
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
79t2 Sale ofReal and Personal Propefi
7915 Transfers In
891I Transfers Out (Use)

4,528,340 3,628,089 8,t56,429

$ 3,481,689 $
4,874

89,412

1,302,572 $ 4,784,261
4,874

3 8,343
360,693

1,549,585
8t6,575
300,042

6,087
295,969

(5 1,06e)
360,693

1,446,515
277,506
196,946

2,365
92,561

432,313
931,723
100,772
45,365

t93,0s7
362,029

1,986,953
8,834

244,621

81,716
508,258

2,755

514,029
r,439,98 r

100,7't2
48,120

193,057
362,029

2,110,789
I 80,3 12

269,027

123,836
171,478
24,406

2,143,019 2,143,019
188,602188,602

556,694 556,694

4,494,269 3,6t2,162 8,106,431

34,07 | 15,927 49,998

257,725
( 196,7 r 8)

30,228
300,636

(364,412)

30,228
558,361

(56 l, l 30)

27,4597080

t200

0 100

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balance - January I (Beginning)

61,007 (33,548)

95,078

3,722,034

(17,62t)

3,382,434

77,457

7,104,468

3000 Fund Balance - December 3l (Ending) $ 3,817,112 $ 3,364,813 g 7,181,925

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT C-4
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2OI8

Total Net Change in tr'und Balances - Governmental Funds

The county does not use internal service funds to charge the costs ofcertain activities
primarily to the governmental funds. The net income (loss) of these internal service
funds would be reported with governmental activities. The net effect of this
consolidation is to increase (decrease) the change in net position.

Current year capital outlays and long-term debt principal payments are expenditures in
the fund financial statements, but they should be shown as increases in capital assets
and reductions in long-term debt in the government-wide financial statements. The net
effect of removing the curent year capital outlays and debt principal payments is to
increase (decrease) the change in net position.

The implementation of the requirements of GASB 68 was effective for previous years.
The entries required by GASB 68 did require that some expenses on Exhibit B-l be
adjusted. Total increase to expenses was $506,423 The net effect on the change in net
position on Exhibit B-1 is a decrease of $506,423.

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not
require the use ofcurrent financial resources. The net effect ofthe current year's
depreciation is to decrease the change in net position.

Various other reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the
modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. These include
recognizing deferred revenue as revenue, adjusting current year revenue to show the
revenue earned from the current year's tax levy, eliminating interfund transactions,
reclassi$ring the proceeds of bond sales, and recognizing the liabilities associated with
maturing long-term debt and interest. The net effect of these reclassifications and
recognitions is to increase (decrease) the change in net position.

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities

$ 77,457

-0-

586,788

(506,423)

(633,55 1)

379,156

$ (96,573)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT D-I
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
DECEMBER3I,2OIS

Total

Employee Ben

Trust Fund

Agency

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Intergovernmental Payab le

Due to Others

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION

Restricted for Other Purposes

Total Net Position

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 146,510 $ 1,259,510

146,510 $ 1,259,510

$ 667,547

5gl,963

$ 1,259,510

146,510

$ 146,510



EXHIBIT D-2
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FIDUCIARYFUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

Total

Employee Ben

Trust Fund

ADDITIONS:

Other Revenue

Total Additions

DEDUCTIONS:

Personnel Services - Employee Benefits

Total Deductions

Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position

Total Net Position - January I (Beginning)

Total Net Position - December 3l (Ending)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 64,401

64,401

40,000

40,000

24,401

122,t09

$ 146,510



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. REPORTING ENTITY

1. Primary Government: Jones County, Texas (the "County"), is a public corporation and political subdivision
organized and existing under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas. It was incorporated in 188 I . The County
is located in West Texas and comprises a land area of 937 square miles. The county is governed by an elected
Commissioners' Court composed of the County Judge and four County Commissioners. It provides services involving
public safety, health and social welfare, culture and recreation, conservation, and the construction, improvement,
maintenance, and acquisition of roads, bridges, and rights-of-way, in addition to general administration.

The county prepares its basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles of the
United States promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Council and other authoritative sources
identified in Statement on Auditing Standards No. 69 of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants; and
it complies with the requirements of the appropriate version of the State of Texas uniform accounting requirements
and the requirements of contracts and grants of agencies from which it receives funds.

The Commissioners Court (the "Court") is elected by voters within Jones County and has the authority to make
decisions and significantly influence operations. It also has the primary accountability for fiscal maffers. Therefore,
the County is a financial reporting entity as defined by the Governmental Accounting Standards Court ("GASB") in
its Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity" and amended by GASB Statement No. 6l

2. Blended Component Unit: In December of 2009, the Commissioners Court issued a certificate for order that
created a nonprofit public facilities corporation under Chapter 303 of the Texas Local Government Code. The Jones
County Public Facility Corporation (the "Corporation") was organized for the purpose of financing, on behalf of the
County an eligible criminal detention and correctional facility and to be responsible for the operation of such facility.
The operations ofthe facility were to be financed on an ongoing basis by the rental ofjail space to third party entities,
such as federal agencies and other local governments. All ofthe members ofthe Board of Directors ofthe Corporation
are appointed by the Commissioners Court of the County and at December 3 1 , 2016 consisted of the County Judge,
one County Commissioner, the County Sheriff, the County Auditor, and one public member. The Corporation is
included in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report as a blended component unit. The Corporation's funds
currently include a Debt Service Fund. The Commissioners Court elected to purchase the new jail facility due to the
failure of all third parties to honor commitments for facility rental. On February 22,2012, the County purchased the
new jail facility from the Corporation from the issuance of certificates of obligation and revenue bonds for $7,830,000
($6,900,000 Cert. of Obligation and $930,000 Revenue Bonds).

2. Non-Component Unit: The Jones and Shackelford Counties Community Supervision and Corrections Department
(also referred to as the Adult Probation Department and CSCD) is not listed as a component unit of the County. The
Director of the CSCD is appointed by the Judge for the 259th Judicial District of the State of Texas which is not
governed by the Commissioners Court of Jones County, Texas. The County is required by statute to provide facilities,
utilities and equipment for the operation of this department. In addition, the County provides administrative functions
including accounting, risk management, and payroll preparation. The Jones and Shackelford Counties CSCD is
responsible for the management and monitoring of adult residents of Jones and Shackelford Counties who are on
criminal probation. Funding for salaries and CSCD personnel and many operating expenses are from various State
Grants and Fees.
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B. GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The government-wide/ìnanciql statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report
information for all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component unit. For the most
part, the effect of inter-fund activity has been removed from these statements.

In the Statement of Net Position, activities of the primary govemment may be classified either as governmental
activities or business-type activities. Governmental activities, which are normally supported by taxes and inter-
govemmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees
and charges for support.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are
offsetby program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment.
Program revenues include:

o Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment, and

. Operating and capital grants and contributions restricted to use in meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment.

Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for Governmental Funds, Proprietary Funds, and Fiduciary Funds,
although the later are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual funds are reported
as separate columns in the fund financial statements. The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities
are government-wide fìnancial statements. They report information on all of the Jones County non-fiduciary activities
with most of the inter-fund activities removed. Governmental activities include programs supported primarily by
intergovernmental revenues from participating taxing units. Business-type activities include operations that rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support.

Inter-fund activities between govemmental funds and between governmental funds and proprietary funds appear as
due to/due from on the Governmental Fund Balance Sheet and Proprietary Fund Statement of Net Position and as

other resources and other uses on the governmental fund Statement ofRevenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund
Balance and on the Proprietary Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position. All inter-
fund transactions between governmental funds and between governmental funds and intemal service funds are
eliminated on the government-wide statements. Inter-fund activities between governmental funds and enterprise funds
remain on the government-wide statements and appear on the government-wide Statement of Net Position as internal
balances and on the Statement of Activities as inter-fund transfers. Inter-fund activities between governmental funds
and fiduciary funds remain as due toldue from on the govemment-wide Statement of Activities.

The fund financial statements provide reports on the financial condition and results of operations for three fund
categories - governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary. Since the resources in the fiduciary funds cannot be used for
County operations, they are not included in the government-wide statements. The County considers some
governmental funds major and reports their financial condition and results of operations in a separate column.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues result
from providing goods and services in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations; they usually
come from exchange or exchange-like transactions. All other revenues are non-operating. Operating expenses can
be tied specifically to the production ofthe goods and services, such as materials and labor and direct overhead. Other
expenses are non-operating.
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C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS, BASIS OF ACCOUNTING, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT
PRESENTATION

The government-wide, Proprietary Fund, and Fiduciary Fund financial statements are reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all
eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Proprietary Funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operøting items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a Proprietary
Fund's principal ongoing operations. The county's Proprietary Fund is its Internal Service Fund.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1,1989, are generally followed
in both the government-wide and Proprietary Fund financial statements to the extent that those standards do not
conflict with or contradict the guidance of the GASB. Governmental Fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement þcus and the modified accrual basß of accounting. Revenues are
recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be measurable if the
transaction amounts can be determined and are considered to be availqble if they are collectible within the current
period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this latter purpose, the government
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the fiscal period.
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as with accrual accounting. However, non-matured
interest on general long-term debt is recorded when due and certain compensated absences, claims, and judgments are
recorded when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with expendable financial resources.

Property taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to
accrual and so have been recorded as revenue of the current fiscal period. Entitlements and shared revenue are
recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the accrual criteria are met. Operating grants are recorded as revenue when
the qualifuing expenditures have been incurred and all other grant requirements have been met. All other revenue
items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is received by the government.

D. FUNDACCOUNTING

The County reports the following major governmental funds

1. The General Fund - The general fund is the County's primary operating fund. This fund accounts for
all financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. There were no
additional major govemmental funds for the current year.

2. Other Governmental Funds - No other governmental funds were major funds for the current year

The County reports the following major enterprise fund(s):

1. The County did not operate a major proprietary fund during the current year

Additionally, the County reports the following fund type(s)

Governmental Funds:

l. Special Revenue Funds - The County accounts for resources restricted to, or designated for, specific
purposes by the County or a grantor in special revenue funds. Most Federal and some State financial
assistance are accounted for in a Special Revenue Fund. Sometimes unused balances must be returned
to the grantor at the close ofspecified project periods.

2. Debt Service Funds - The County accounts for resources accumulated and payments made for principal
and interest on long-term general obligation debt of governmental funds in a debt service fund. The
County did maintain a non-major Debt Service Fund during the current hscal year in connection with the
Jail Facility purchased from the Public Facilities Corporation.
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3. Capital Projects Funds - Proceeds from long-term debt fînancing and revenues and expenditures related
to authorized construction and other capital asset acquisitions are accounted for in a capital projects fund.
The County did not maintain Capital Projects Funds during the current fîscal year.

4, Permanent Funds - The County accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated that the
principal may not be expended and where the income may only be used for purposes that support the
County's programs. The County did not maintain Permanent Funds during the current year.

Proprietary Funds:

5. Enterprise Funds - The County's activities for which outside users are charged a fee roughly equal to
the cost ofproviding the goods or services ofthose activities are accounted for in an enterprise fund. The
County did not operate an enterprise fi.rnd during the current year.

6. Internal Service Funds - Revenues and expenses related to services provided to organizations inside
the County on a cost reimbursement basis are accounted for in an internal service fund. The County did
not maintain an Internal Service Fund during the current year.

Fiduciary Funds:

7. Private Purpose Trust Funds - The County accounts for donations for which the donor has stipulated
that both the principal and the income may be used for purposes that benefit parties outside the County.
The County did not maintain Private Purpose Trust Funds during the current year.

8. Pension (and Other Employee Benefit) Trust Funds - These funds are used to account for local
pension and other employee benefit funds that are provided by the County in lieu of or in addition to the
Texas County District Retirement System in which the County participates. The County used an
employee benefit trust fund to provide a partially self-funded health insurance for the gap between a low
deductible and the actual insurance deductible.

9. Investment Trust Fund - This fund is one in which the County holds assets in trust for other entities
participating in an investment program managed by the County. The County did not have Investment
Trust Funds during the current year.

10. Agency Funds - The County accounts for resources held in the various departments and elected officials
for ultimate disposition to the State, the County, and private individual minors in Agency Funds,

ll. Inter-fund Balances and Transfers - There were no balances due to internal service funds during the
current year as internal service funds were not maintained during the current year. All remaining balances
resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) inter-fund goods and services are provided or
reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and (3)
payments between funds are made.

Transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move receipts restricted to debt service from
the funds collecting the receipts to the debt service fund as debt service payments become due, and (3)
use unrestricted revenues collected in the general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other
funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations.

During the current year ended December 31,2018, the County did not make a one-time transfer of funds
from the general fund to the debt service fund to subsidize, in part, the County's obligation for interest
and sinking fund requirements. However, there were transfers from the County Jail Project Fund to the
debt service fund for the County's obligations for interest and sinking fund requirements.
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12. Deferred Outflows of Resources:
The County reports decreases in net assets that relate to future periods as deferred outflows ofresources
in a separate section of its government-wide and proprietary funds statements of net position. The
deferred outflow of resources reported in this year's financial statements were for TCDRS pension
liabilities. No deferred outflows of resources affect the govemmental funds financial statements in the
current year.

13. Deferred Inflows ofResources:
The County's governmental funds report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This
separate financial statement element reflects an increase in net assets that appliês to a future period(s).
The County will not recognize the related revenues until a future event occurs. The County has only one
type of item which occurs because governmental fund revenues are not recognized until available
(collected not later than 60 days after the end of the County's fîscal year) under the modified accrual basis
of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, unavailable property taxes and
grants are reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. The County did have deferred inflows of
resources to report in its government-wide or proprietary fund frnancial statements for the current year
in relation to participation in the TCDRS retirement system.

14. Pensions:
The fiduciary net position of the Texas County & District Retirement System of Texas (TCDRS) has
been determined using the flow of economic resources measurement focus and full accrual basis of
accounting. This includes for purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and defened inflows ofresources related to pensions, pension expense, and information about
assets, liabilities and additions toldeductions from TCDRS's hduciary net position. Benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with
the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

E. OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES

l. For purposes of the statement of cash flows for proprietary funds, the County considers highly liquid
investments to be cash equivalents if they have maturity of three months or less when purchased.

2. The County reports inventories of supplies using first-in, first-out cost including consumable
maintenance and office supply items. Under the purchase method, supplies are recorded as expenditures
when they are purchased.

3, In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements,
long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net position. Bond premiums
and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life ofthe bonds using the
effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term ofthe related debt.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other fÏnancing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

4. The County maintains a vacation and sick leave policy available only to fulltime employees. Full-time
employees eam6.66 hoursof vacationpermonthandShoursof sickleavepermonth. Vacationand
sick leave days are allowed to accumulate up to 80 hours and 240 hours respectively. The County has
no liability for unused sick leave at termination of employment.
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5. Capital assets include land, buildings, furniture and equipment, and infrastructure assets. These assets

are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide
financial statements. The County defines capital assets as assets with an initial, individual cost of more
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as

projects are constructed.

Buildings, furniture and equipment of the County are depreciated using the straight-line method over the
following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years

Buildings
Building Improvements
Infrastructure
Vehicles
Office Equipment
Computer Equipment

40
30

25/3s/45
l0
l0
l0

6. Since Internal Service Funds support the operations of governmental funds, they are consolidated with
the governmental funds in the govemment-wide financial statements. The expenditures of governmental
funds that create the revenues of internal service funds are eliminated to avoid "grossing up" the revenues
and expenses ofthe County as a whole.

7. The County does not maintain any restricted assets at this time.

8. The County purchases worker's compensation insurance through the Texas Association of Counties
Workers Compensation Fund.

9, Net Position and Fund Balances:

Government-wide and Proprietary Fund Net Position:
Government-wide and proprietary fund net positions are divided into three components:
. Net investment in capital assets---+onsist ofthe historical cost of capital assets less accumulated depreciation

and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to finance those assets plus deferred outflows
ofresources less deferred inflows ofresources related to those assets.

. Restricted net position-consist of assets that are restricted by the County's creditors (for example, through
debt covenants), by the state enabling legislation (through restrictions on shared revenues), by grantors
(both federal and state), and by other contributors.

. Unrestricted-all other net position is reported in this category.

Governmental Fund Balances:
In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are classified as follows:
. Non-spendable-Amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in a non-spendable form or because

they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.
. Restricted-Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the County's state or federal

laws, or externally imposed conditions by grantors or creditors.
. Committed-Amounts that can be used only for specific purposes determined by a formal action by

Commissioners' Court ordinance.
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. Assigned-Amounts that are designated by the County Judge for a particular purpose but are not spendable
until a budget ordinance is passed or there is a majority vote approval (for capital projects or debt service)
by the Commissioners' Court.

. Unassigned-All amounts not included in other spendable classifications.

10. Use of Restricted Resources:

When an expenditure/expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources
(net position), the County's policy is to first apply the expenditure/expense toward restricted resources
and then toward unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the County's policy is to first apply the
expenditure toward restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive classifications-committed
and then assigned fund balances before using unassigned fund balances.

II. RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND
BALANCE SHEET AND THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Exhibit C-2 provides the reconciliation between the fund balance for total governmental funds on the governmental
fund balance sheet and the net position for governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of
net position. One element ofthat reconciliation explains that capital assets are not financial resources and are therefore
not reported in governmental funds. In addition, long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and are not reported as liabilities in the funds. The details of capital assets and long-
term debt at the beginning of the year were as follows:

Governmental Funù Only

Net Value at
the Beginning Change in Net

ofthe Year Position

A.

Ca¡rital Assets at the Beginning of the Accumulated

Year Historical Cost Depreciation

L¿nd

Buildin gs and Inprovenrents
Vehicles, Fumiture and Equipnrent

Infrastructure
Construction in Progress

Change in Net Position

$ 53,567 $

9,513,217

5,5go,l07

2,833,070

2,gg7,g2g

4,000,613

l,g37,og2

53,567

6,625,299

7,579,494

895,988

s

$ 9,154,337

Long-term Liatilities at the

Besinnins ofthe Year

PayaHe at the

Beginning of
the Year

Notes or Capital læases Payable

Certificates of Obligation
PFC Revenue Bonds Payable

Unamortized Premium/Dis count
Accrued Interest

Chanse in Net Position

$ 148,499

5,975,000

810,000

142,682

95,417

7,l7l,5gg

Net Adjustment to Net Position
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B. EXPLANATION OF CERTAIN DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES AND
THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Exhibit C-4 provides reconciliation between the net changes in fund balance as shown on the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the changes in net position of governmental
activities as reported on the government-wide statement of activities. One element of that reconciliation explains that
current year capital outlays and debt principal payments are expenditures in the fund financial statements but should
be shown as increases in capital assets and decreases in long-term debt in the government-wide statements. This
adjustment affects both the net asset balance and the change in net position.

The details of this adjustment are as follows:

Gorærnmental Funds Only

Amount

Adjustments To
Changes in Net Adjustments to

Position Net Position

Current Year Capital Outlay
I¿nd
Buildin gs & Improvements

Vehicles, Fumiture & Equipment

Infrastructure Assets

Total Capital Outlay

Debt Principal Paymenh

Certifi cates of Obligation hincipal
Cap ital tæas e Principal

Revenue Bond Principal

Total Principal Payments

Total Adjustment to Net Position

$ 4,997

8,950

194,342

208,289 208,289

378,499

208,289

378,499

230,000

148,499

378,499

$ 586,788 $ 586,788
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Another element of the reconciliation on Exhibits C-2 and C-4 are described as various other reclassifications and
eliminations necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting. This
adjustment is the result of several items. The details for this element are as follows:

Amount

Adjustments to

Change in Net

Position
Adjustmenß to

Net Position
Adjustments to Rerrcnue and Unearned Rer'enue

Beginning of Year Uneamed Tax Revenue
Property taxadjustments to convert fromthe modified
accrual basis to the full accrual basis of accounting
Other Revenue Adjustments
Prior Period A djustment

Reclassify Procee& of Bonds, l-oans & Capital læases

Certificate of Obligation & Revenue Bond Proceeds

Discount (Premium) on Issuance ofBonds
Matured Unpaid Revenue Bonds Prior Year

Change in Matured Unpaid Revenue Bonds

Capital læase Proceeds for Purchase of Equipment

Reclassify Liabilities Incurred but not Liquidated This Year
None

Reclassify Certain Expenditures to Full Accrual From
ModifiedAccrual

Adjust Interest Eryense on [-ong Term Financing
Other Adjustments
A mo rt ization o f Premiunr/Dis count on Bonds Is s ued
Record Basis on Disposition of Capital Assets

Totals

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

2,960,679

401,888

3,016

7,510

(33,258)

$ 401,888

3,016

7,510

(33,258)

5 2,960,679

401,888

3,016

$

$

$

$

$

7,510

(33,258)

$ 379,156 $ 3,339,835

III. STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE. AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. BUDGETARYDATA

The Commissioner's Court adopts an "appropriated budget" for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds. The
County is required to present the adopted and final amended budgeted revenues and expenditures for each ofthese
funds. The County compares the final amended budget to actual revenues and expenditures. The General Fund Budget
report appears in Exhibit E-1.

The procedures listed below are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the general-purpose hnancial
statements:

1 . Prior to December 3 l, the County prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year beginning January
l. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

2. A meeting of the Commissioners Court is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget.
At least ten days'public notice of the meeting must be given.
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3. Prior to January l, the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the Commissioners
Court. Once a budget is approved, it can only be amended at the function and fund level by approval of
a majority of the members of the Commissioners Court. Amendments are presented to the
Commissioners Court at its regular meetings. Each amendment must have Commissioners Court
approval. As required by law, such amendments are made before the fact, are reflected in the official
minutes of the Commissioners Court and are not made after year end. Because the County has a policy
of careful budgetary control, several amendments were necessary during the year. None of those were
significant except additional costs for capital outlay.

4. Each budget is controlled at the department level for applicable revenue and expenditure function/object
level. Budgeted amounts are as amended by the Commissioners Court. All budget appropriations lapse
at year end. A reconciliation of fund balances for both appropriated budget and non-appropriated budget
special revenue funds is as follows:

December 31,2018
Fund Balance

Appropriated Budget Funds

Non- appropri ated Budget Funds

$ 3,194,37 4

$ 3,194,374

B. EXCESS OF EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

Expenditures did not exceed budget appropriations during the current year. The budget is prepared on the cash
basis ofaccounting.

C. DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

The County did not incur a deficit fund balance in any funds during the current fiscal year.

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The carrying amount of the County's cash and temporary investments at the end of the fiscal year follows:

CASH AND IIYVESTMENTS - BY ACCOUNT TYPE 12/3112018

1. Cash in Bank - Including Money Market Accounts

2. Certificates of Deposit

s 6,279,909

1,838,780

Total Cash and Investments $ 8,118,588

CASH AND INVESTMENTS. BY FTJND l2t3u20t8
1. Cash and Investments - GeneralFund
2. Cash and Investments - Other Major Govt. Funds

3. Cash and Investments - Non-Major Govemmental

4. Cash and Investments - Enterprise.

5. Cash and Investments - Intemal Service

6. Cash and Investments - Agency

7. Cash and Investments - Trusts

8. Cash and Investments - Other

$

$

$

$

$

$

$

s

3,483,301

3,229,267

1,259,510

146,510

Total Cash and Investments
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Countv Policies and Lesal and Contractual Provisions Governins Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk for Deposits: State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial
institutions in which funds will be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities
with a fair value equaling or exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day. The pledged
securities must be in the name of the governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent. The County's
cash deposits at year end and at the date ofthe highest cash balance were entirely covered by FDIC insurance
and/or pledged collateral or bond held by the County's agent bank in the County's name, and therefore, the
County was not exposed to custodial credit risk during the current year.

Foreign Currencv Risk: The County limits the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the
fair value of an investment or a deposit by (state an appropriate policy, such as, limiting all deposits
denominated in a foreign cuffency to less than 5o/o of all deposits.)

As of the end of the current ftscal year, the following are the County's cash and cash equivalents, and
investments with respective maturities and credit rating:

Tlpe of Deposit for Cash, Cash
Maturity in
less than I

veâr

Maturity Maturity
in I to 10 in over Credit

RatinsEouivalents. and Investments Fair Value Percent years l0 years

Cash

Money markets, CD's and FDIC

Irsured Accounts

Investment Pools

None

$2,765,552 34.06% $ 2,765,552 $ $ -N/A

5,353,036 65.94% 5,353,036 - N/A

0.00%

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents $ 8.1 18.588 100.00% $ 8,1 18.588 $ $

Investments

county Policies and Legal and contractual Provisions Governing Investments

Compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act
The Public Funds Investment Act (Government Code Chapter 2256) contains specific provisions in the
areas of investment practices, management reports, and establishment of appropriate policies. Among other
things, it requires a governmental entity to adopt, implement, and publicize an investment policy. That policy
must address the following areas: (l) safety of principal and liquidity, (2) portfolio diversification, (3)
allowable investments, (4) acceptable risk levels, (5) expected rates of return, (6) maximum allowable stated
maturity of portfolio investments, (7) maximum average dollar-weighted maturity allowed based on the
stated maturity date for the portfolio, (8) investment staff quality and capabilities, (9) and bid solicitation
preferences for certificates of deposit.
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Statutes authorize the entity to invest in (l) obligations of the U.S. Treasury, certain U.S. agencies, and the
State of Texas and its agencies; (2) guaranteed or secured certificates of deposit issued by state and national
banks domiciled in Texas; (3) obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities and other political subdivisions
of any state having been rated as to investment quality not less than an "4"; (4) No load money market funds
with a weighted average maturity of 90 days or less; (5) fully collateralized repurchase agreements; (6)
commercial paper having a stated maturity of 270 days or less from the date of issuance and is not rated less
than A-l or P-l by two nationally recognized credit rating agencies OR one nationally recognized credit
agency and is fully secured by an irrevocable letter of credit; (7) secured corporate bonds rated not lower
than "AA-" or the equivalent; (8) public funds investment pools; and (9) guaranteed investment contracts for
bond proceeds investment only, with a defined termination date and secured by U.S. Govemment direct or
agency obligations approved by the Texas Public Funds Investment Act in an amount equal to the bond
proceeds. The Act also requires the entity to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to
investment practices as provided by the Act. The County is in substantial compliance with the requirements
of the Act and with local policies.

Additional policies and contractual provisions governing investments for the County are speciflred below:

Credit Risk: To limit the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations the County limits investments in (list investments covered by the County's credit risk policy, such
as commercial paper, corporate bonds, mutual bond funds) to the top (or top 2 or 3) ratings issued by
nationally recognized statistical rating organizations (NRSROs). As of the current fiscal year, the County's
investments in (none) were not rated because credit quality disclosure are not required.

Custodial Credit Risk for Investments: To limit the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, a govemment will not be able to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that
are in possession of an outside party the County requires counterparties to register the securities in the name
of the County and hand them over to the County or its designated agent. This includes securities in securities
lending transactions. All of the securities are in the County's name and held by the County or its agent.

Concentration of Credit Risk: To limit the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's
investment in a single issuer, the County limits investments to less than 5o/o of its total investments. The
County further limits investments in a single issuer when they would cause investment risks to be
significantly greater in the governmental and business-type activities, individual major funds, aggregate non-
major funds and fiduciary fund types than they are in the primary government. Usually this limitation is
20%.

Interest Rate Risk: To limit the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of
investments, the County requires at least half of the investment portfolio to have maturities of less than one
year on a weighted average maturity basis.

Foreign Currency Risk for Investments: The County limits the risk that changes in exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment by avoiding all investments denominated in a foreign
cunency.

The County categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. the hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair value
of the asset. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are
significant other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. Investments that are
measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its equivalent) as a practical expedient are not
classified in the fair value hierarchy below. In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fall into
different levels in the above fair value hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the valuation. The County's assessment of the significance
of particular inputs to these fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors speciflrc to each
asset or liability.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the County had $0 in investments subject to the fair value
measurement. The County also has S0 investments measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV) per Share (or
its equivalent).
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B. PROPERTYTAXES

Property taxes are levied by October I on the assessed value listed as ofthe prior January I for all real and business
personal property located in the County in conformity with Subtitle E, Texas Property Tax Code. Taxes are due on
receipt of the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February I of the year following the year in which imposed.
On January 3 I of each year, a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes, penalties, and interest
ultimately imposed. Property tax revenues are considered available (l) when they become due or past due and
receivable within the current period and (2) when they are expected to be collected during a 60-day period after the
close ofthe county fiscal year.

C. DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE

Delinquent taxes are prorated between maintenance and debt service based on rates adopted for the year ofthe levy
of that taxing unit (except for the current year during which no interest and sinking debt was outstanding). Delinquent
property taxes are cancelled and removed from the roll for real property assessments that are more than 20 years old
and personal property assessments that are more than l0 years old.

D. INTER.FUND BALANCES AND TRANSFERS

Inter-fund balances at December 31,2018, consisted of the following amounts:

Due to General Fund From:
Other Major Govemmental Funds

Non-major Govemnrental Funds

Non-major Proprietary Fund
All Others

Total Due to General F\rnd From Other Funù

154,446

154,446

Due to Other Major Gorærnmental tr'unù From:
Creneral Fund

Non-major Crovemmental Funds

Non-major Proprietary Fund
All Others

Total Due to Other Major Gorærnmental Funds

Due to Non-major Gorrcrnmental Funds From:
Crneral Fund

Other Major Govemmental Funds

Non-major Pro prietary Fund
AllOthers

Total Due to Non-major C,or¡ernmental Funds

154,446

154,446

The balance of 5154,446 due to the general fund resulted from a current year loan and prior year loans to a special
revenue funds that will be liquidated in three years, thus 587,392 of the balance is not scheduled to be collected in
the subsequent year.

$

$

$

$

s

$
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Inter-fund transfers for the year ended December 3 I , 20 18 were as follows

Transfers to General Fund From:

Other Major Governmental Funds

Non-maj or Go vernmental Funds

Non-maj or Proprietary Fund

All Others

Total Transferred to General Fund

257,725

$ 257 725

Transfers to Other Major Governmental Funds From:

General Fund

Non-maj or Governmental Funds

Non-maj or Proprietary Fund

All Others

Total Transferred to Other Major Governmental Fund
Transfers to Non-major Governmental Funds From:

General Fund

Other Non-Maj or Governmental Funds

Non-maj or Proprietary Fund

All Others

Total Transferred to Non-major Governmental Funds

Transferred to Non-major Proprietary Fund From:

General Fund

Other Major Governmental Funds

Non-maj or Governmental Funds

All Others

Total Transferred to Internal Service Funds

Transferred to All Other Funds From:

General Fund

Other Major Governmental Funds

Non-maj or Governmental Funds

Non-maj or Proprietary Fund

Total Transferred to All Other Funds

196,718

103,918

$ 300,636

$

2,769

2,769

Inter-fund transfers for the current year end consisted of the following individual amounts:

Transfers are used to (l) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to the fund
that statute or budget requires to expend them and to cover operating def,rcits in funds such as the Juvenile
Probation. The County did make operating transfers to the Road & Bridge firnds and the Juvenile Probation fund
during the current year.

During the current year ended December 31,2018, the County did not make a one-time tra¡rsfer of funds from the
general fund to the debt service fund to subsidize, in part, the County's obligation of interest and sinking fund
requirements.

$

$

$

$

$

$

$
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E. DISAGGREGATION OF RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Receivables at December 31,2018 were as follows:

Due From
Other

Propertv Taxes Corærnmenús Other Total Receirables

$ 2,s86,618 $ 198,649 $ 154,446 $ 26,658 $ 2,966,371

962,t03 486,753 39,069 1,487,925

$ 3,548.721 $ 68s.402 $ 154,4465 6s,727 S 4,454,296

Due From
Other Funù

Gor,rrnmental Activities :

Crneral Fund

Other Major Govemmental Funds

Non-major Cnvemmental Funds

Oth er Cnvernmental Fun ds

Total Gorrcrnmental Activities

Amounts not scheduled for collection during
the subsequent year S $ $ $ s

Payables at December 31,2018 were as follows

Accounts

PayaHe

[-oåns,

læases and

Bonò
PayaHe- Aùr¿nces

Current From Other
Year Fun&

Due To
Other

GorærnmenS

Due To
Other
Funds

Accrued
Interest
PayaHe

Total

PayaHes

C'owrnmental Activities :

Crneral Fund

Other Major Cnvemnrntal Funds

Non-major Cnvemnrntal Funds

Other Covemnrcntal Funds

Total Gorærnmental T¡pe Actiüties
Amounb not scheduledfor pûyment

durins the suheouent vear

$ 4s,94.2 $ $

36,215 145,000 154,446

$ $ $ s 45,942

54,615 3n,276

s 82,1s7 s 14s,000 $ 1s4,446 $ s $ s4,615 S 436,218

$ $ $ $ $ $ $
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F. CAPITAL ASSET ACTIVITY

Capital asset activity for the County for the year ended December 31,2018, was as follows

Primary C'orærnment

Beginning Balance Additions Retirements fiding Balance

Gor¡ernmental Activities :

Ca¡ital Assets Not Being Depreciated:

t^and

Ca¡Ítal Assets Being Depreciateù

Buildings and Inprovenrcnts

Vehicles, Fumiture, and Equipnrent

Infastructure Assets

53,s67 $ 4,997 $$ $ 58,5@

9,s13,217

5,580,107

8,950

194,342 104,M7

9,522,167

5,670,382

2,833,070

Totals at Historic Cmt $ l$ 208,289 $ 104,0ó7$ 18,084,183

[æss Accumulated Depreciation for:

Buildings and Inprovements

Vehicles, Fumiture, and Equipnrent

Infrastructure Assets

$ 2,887,929 $

4,000,613

226,581 $

329,055

77,915

70,809

3,1 14,510

4,2s8,8s9

2,014,996

$

Total Accumulated Denreciation $ $ 633,55r $ 70,810 $ x8&365

C'overnrnental Activities Carital Assets. Net $ 9. 154.337 S 925.262\ S 33.2s7 $ 8.695.8r8

Depreciation expense was chargedto gorærnmental functions as follor¡a:

Juvenile Probation

Administration - Facilities Management

Jail

C.onstable

County Sheriff Department

Jail - New

District Clerk

Auto Task Force

Infrastructure - Roads and Bridges

Adult Probation

$ 4,282

69,583

7,680

3,060

39,775

163,790

343,466

1,915

Total Depreciation Bpens e s 633,551

G. SHORT-TERMDEBTPAYABLE

The County accounts for short-term debts for unpaid matured bonds and interest through a Debt Service Fund. Short-
term debts include notes made in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government code and matured unpaid
principal and interest.

Date of
Is s ue/

l\4aturity DescriÉion
Beginning

Balance

Amount
Issued or

Long-term
Not Paid

Amount Paid
or Redeemed

Ending
Balance

201212035

20121203s

2012 Revenue Bonds-Matured Principal $

2012 Revenue Bonds-Matured Interest

120,000 $

100,758

25,000 $
50,400 96,543

145,000

54,615

$

Totals$ 220,758 S 75,400 $ 96,543 $ 199,615
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H. BONDS, LONG.TERM NOTES PAYABLE, CAPITAL LEASES AND OTHER LONG.TERM
OBLIGATIONS

Bonded indebtedness, long-term notes payable, and other long-term obligations ofthe County are reflected in the
General Long-Term Debt Account Group. Current requirements for principal and interest expenditures are accounted
for in the appropriate funds and departments based on the use of the original debt proceeds. In connection with the
Jones County Public Facility Corporation, a blended component unit of the County issued Revenue Bonds Series 2009
on December 23,2009 in the face amount of S7,880,000 at an effective raÍe of 6.20/o. The Revenue Bonds Series 2009
(the "Bonds") were issued to provide funds to (i) finance a project that consists of the development, design,
construction and equipping of an 96 bed secure detention center on land in Jones County, (the land, improvements
and its operations are collectively referred to as the "Project'), (ii) to establish a reserve fund for the payment of the
Bonds; (iii) to pay interest on the Bonds for a period of approximately 24 months from the date of issuance; (iv) to
pay certain operating expenses during construction and for up to one year following completion of construction; and
(v) to pay costs of issuing the Series 2009 Bonds. The land on which the detention center was built was subject to a
ground lease between the County and the PFC.

In relation to the Project, The County has acquired all assets of the PFC and cancelled the lease with the PFC after
issuing $6,900,000 in Certificates of Obligation and S930,000 in Revenue Bonds on February 22,2012. The Revenue
Bond payments are to be paid by the County only upon the receipt of rental payments received from third party entities
that pay the County to house their inmates in the new detention facility. The amount of the payments required under
the agreement is 50% ofall lease revenue received up to the debt service schedule in the agreement.

A summary of changes in general long-term debt for the year ended December 3 I , 20 18 is as follows:

DESCRIPTTON

Interest
Rate

Payable

Amounts
Original

Issue

Interest
Current

Year

Payable
Amounts

Outstanding
t2/31/2017 Issued Retired

Payable

Amounts
Outstanding
t2/3U2018

Governmental Tvne Activities
Certificates of Obligation -

NewJail 3.0 - 5.0Yo

Rerrenue Bonds Payable -

NewJail Lease Beds 6.20Vo

Capital Lease Payable -

JD Financial 2.60Yo

Net Pension Liability
SUBTOTAL LONG-'TT,RM DEBT

Unamortized Premium / Discount on Bonds

Accrued Interest Payable

Business Tvne Activities
None

$ 6,900,000 $

930,000

190,0 l0

$ 5,975,000 $

I 10,000

r48,499
2,586,03 l

$ 20s,000

25,000

t48,499
t,391,'t28

$ s,770,000

785,000

1,194,303

$ $ 9,519.530 $

t42,681
95,418

$1,770,227 $ 7,749,303

92,402
7,509

95,418

135,t',|2

92,402

TOTAL $ s 9,7s7,629 S 92,402 $1,873,1s4 $ 7,976,877

The County also had $54,615 in interest payable and $145,000 in bonds payable that matured during 2012 through
201 8 that remains unpaid and is reported current liabilities. The agreement in connection with this Debt was for the
Federal Marshall Service or other counties to lease prison beds in return for amounts that are to be used for revenue
bond principal and interest payments. As of December 3 I , 20 I 8, prison beds have been leased by the Federal Marshall
Service or other counties. In prior years, the County has not defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the
proceeds of new bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, there are no trust account assets and liabilities for the defeased bonds that are not included in the

County's financial statements. On December 3 I , 20 I 8, $0 of bonds considered defeased are still outstanding.
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T. COMMITMENTSUNDEROPERATINGLEASES

Commitments under operating (non-capitalized) lease agreements for equipment provide for minimum future rental
payments as of December 3 l, 201 8, as follows:

Year Ending December 31

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023-2028

2029-2033

Total l\frnimum Rentals

Rental Ependitures in Fiscal Year 2018 10,329

J. DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS- BONDS, CAPITAL LEASES, & OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT

Debt service requirements for certihcates of obligation, bonds, and capital leases payable are as follows:

Certificates of OHigation, Rerænue Bonù andCapital læases PayaHe

$

$

$

Year [ndedDecember 31 Principl Interest
Total

Requirements

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

202+2028
2029-2033

203+2038

240,000 $

250,000

260,000

270,000

280,000

1,635,000

2,105,000

1,515,000

31s,938 $
303,975

293,325

282,275

270,825

I,t2t,t25
654,750

129,038

555,938

553,97s

553,325

552,275

550,825

2,756,125

2,759,750

1,94,038

$

Totals $ 6,555,000 s 3,371,250 $ %926,250

K. ACCUMULATED UNPAID VACATION AND SICK LEAVE BENEFITS

The County maintains a vacation and sick leave policy for its full-time staff. The policy provides that full time
employees earn l0 days' vacation per year. Vacation benefits can be accumulated up to l0 days. Employees also
eam sick leave time of l2 days per year accumulated up to a maximum of 30 days. No unused sick leave benefits are
paid upon termination of employment for any reason. As such, no liability is maintained for accumulated vacation of
sick leave benefits.
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L. RETIREMENT PLAN-TEXAS COUNTY DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PIan Descrìption. Jones County provides pension, disability, and death benefits for all of its full-time employees
through a statewide, agent multiple-employer, public-employee retirement system through the Texas County District
Retirement System (the "TCDRS"). The system serves 677 actively participating counties and districts throughout
Texas. Each employer has its own defined benefit plan that functions similarly to a cash balance plan. The assets of
the plans are pooled for investment purposes, but each employer's plan assets may be used only for the payment of
benefits to the members of that employer's plan. In accordance with Texas law, it is intended that the pension plan be
construed and administered in a manner that the retirement system will be considered qualified under Section 401(a)
of the Internal Revenue Code. All employees (except temporary staff) of a participating employer must be enrolled in
the plan. The TCDRS issues a comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) on a calendar year basis. The CAFR is
available upon written request from the TCDRS Board of Trustees at P. O. Box 2034, Austin, Texas 78768-2034.

The plan provisions are adopted by the goveming body of the County, within the options available in the Texas state
statutes governing TCDRS (TCDRS Act). Members can retire at ages 60 and above with 8 or more years of service
or with 30 years regardless of age, or when the sum of their age and years of service equals 75 or more. A member is
vested after 8 years but must leave his accumulated contributions in the plan to receive any employer-financed benefit.
Members who withdraw their personal contributions in a lump-sum are not entitled to any amounts contributed by
their employer.

Benefit amounts are determined by the sum of the employee's contributions to the plan, with interest, and employer
financed monetary credits. The level ofthese monetary credits is adopted by the governing body of the County within
the actuarial constraints imposed by the TCDRS Act so that the resulting benefits can be expected to be adequately
financed by the employer's commitment to contribute. At retirement, death, or disability, the benefit is calculated by
converting the sum of the employee's accumulated contributions and the employer-financed monetary credits to a
monthly annuity using annuity purchase rates prescribed by the TCDRS Act.

Contríbutions. The County has elected the annually determined contribution rate (ADCR) plan provisions if the
TCDRS Act. The plan is funded by monthly contributions from both employee members and the employer based on
the covered payroll of employee members. Under the TCDRS Act, the contribution rate of the employer is actuarially
determined annually.

Employees of Jones County were required to contribute 7.0o/o of their annual gross earnings during the fiscal year.
The contribution rates for the County were l6.37Yo and 15.67Yo in calendar years 2077 and 2018, respectively. The
County'scontributionstoTCDRSfortheyearendedDecember3l,20lSwere$487,951andwereequal totherequired
conhibutions.

Dìscount Rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 8. I 0%. There was no change in the
discount rate since the previous year. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that
contributions from plan members and those of the contributing employers are made at the statutorily required rates.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all future
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefrt payments to determine the total pension liability.

The long-term rate of return on pension plan investments is 8.10%. The long-term expected rate of return is determined
by adding expected inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatilþ and correlation. The
capital market assumptions and information shown below are provided by TCDRS' investment consultant, Cliffuater
LLC. The numbers shown below are based on January 2016 information for a7-10-year time horizon.
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Note that the valuation assumption for long-term expected return is re-assessed at a minimum of every four years and
is set based on a 30-year time horizon; the most recent analysis was performed in 20 13.

Asset Class Benchmark
Target

Allocation (l)

Geometric
Real Rate

of
Return

(Expected
minus

Inflation)
(2)

US Equities

Private Equity

Global Equities

International Equities -
Developed Markets

International Equities -
Emerging Markets

Investment-Grade Bonds

High-Yield Bonds

Opportunistic Credit

Direct Lending

Distressed Debt

REIT Equities

Master Limited Partnerships
(MLPÐ

Private Real Estate
Partnerships

Hedge Funds

Total

Dow Jones U.S. Total Stock Market
Index

Cambridge Associates Global Private

Equity & Venture Capital Index (3)

MSCI World (net) Index

MSCI World Ex USA (Net)

MSCI EM Standard (net) Index

Bloomberg Barclays U.S. Aggregate
Bond Index

Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay

Capped Index

Citigroup High-Yield Cash-Pay

Capped Index

S&P/LSTA Leveraged Loan Index

Cambridge Associates Distressed

Securities Index (4)

67% FTSE NAREIT Equity REITs
Index + 33% FRSE EPRANAREIT
Global Real Estate Index

Alerian MLP Index

Cambridge Associates Real Estate

Index (5)

Hedge Fund Research, Inc. (HFRI)
Fund ofFunds
Composite Index

13.50o/o

16.00%

150%

10.00%

7.00%

3.00o/.

3.00%

2.00%

10.00%

3.00%

2.00%

3.00%

6.00%

20.00o/o

4.7ÙVr

7.70%

5.00%

4.70%

5.70%

0.60%

3.70%

3.83%

8.15%

6.70%

3.85%

5.60%

7.20%

3.85%

100.00%
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(r) Target asset allocation adopted at the April 2017 TCDRS board meeting.

(z) Geometric real rates of return in addition to assumed inflation of l.6Yo, per Cliffuater's2017
capital market assumptions.

(r) Includes vintage years 2006-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs.

(4) Includes vintage years 2005-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs.

(5) Includes vintage years2007-present of Quarter Pooled Horizon IRRs.

Changes ìn the Net Pension Liability. At December 31, 2018, the County reported a net pension liability (asset) of
$1,194,303. The changes in net pension liability (asset) were as follows:

lncrease (Decrease)

Total Pension

Liability
(a)

Plan Fiduciary
Net Position

(b)

Net Pension

Lia bi I ity
(a)- (b)

Balance at t2/3L/16
Changes for the year:

Service cost

I nte rest
Change in benefit terms
Diff between expected/actual experience
Changes of assumptions

Contributions - employer
Contri butions - employee
Net investment income
Benefit payments, including refunds of

employee contri butions
Admi nistrative expenses

Other charges

Net changes

Balance atL2/3L/17

s 1s,978,448 S 13,352,418 $ 2,626,030

488,660

1,293,084

(6L2,5L7)

83,291

(r,026,184]|

782

527,704

225,674

1,944,s99

(7,026,L841

(9,s82)

7s0)

488,660

r,293,084

1612,sr7l

83,29t

(s27,704]|

(22s,674l,

( 1,944,599)

9,982

3,750

r,727)t
s s

The net pension liability was measured as of December 31, 2017 and the total pension liability used to calculate the
net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date and for the year then ended.

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that affected measurement of the total pension liability during
the measurement period.
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There were no changes ofbenefit terms that affected measurement of the total pension liability during the measurement
period. Díscount Rste Sensitivíty Analysis. The following shows the net pension liability calculated using the discount
rate of 8.10yo, as well as what the County's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate
that is I percentage point lower (7 .10%) or I percentage point higher (9. l0%) than the cunent rate.

1% Decrease in
Discount Rate

(7.t%l
Discount Rate

(8.1%l

I ncrease i n

Discount Rate

(e.L%)

County's net pension liability S 3.10s.180 s 1.L94,303 S (429,499)

Pensíon Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources ønd Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions.

For the year ended December 31,2018, the County recognized pension expense of$l 16,457.

At December 31,2078, the County reported deferred outflows of resources and defened inflows of resources related

to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred

Outflows of
Resources

Deferred

lnflows of
Resources

Differences between expected and actual economic

experience (net of current year amort¡zation) s (408,34s) s 443,000

Changes in actuarial assumptions S ss.szz s

Differences between projected and actual investment

earnings (net of current year amortization) s 5 278,242

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 487,951

Total s 13s,133 s 661,242

For the year ending December 31, 2018, $487,95 I is reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pension
resulting from contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pension will be

recognized in pension expense as follows:

Fiscal Year Ending December 31,

20L9 S (341,348)

2020 S (338,6e0)

202L s (1ss,134)

2022 S (174.888)

2023 s

Thereafter s
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M. CHANGES IN LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term activity for the year ended December 31,2018, was as follows

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:

Bonds, Certificates, Capital Leases and Notes Payable:

2012 Certificates of Obligation $ 5,975,000 S

Capital Leases John Deere Financial 148,499

2012 Revenue Bonds Pay. FromLeæe Beds 810,000

$ 205,000 $ 5,770,000 $ 215,000

148,499

25,000 785,000 25,000

Total Bonds, Certificates, Capital Leases

and Notes Pavable $ 6.933.499 $ $ 378,499 $ 6,5s5,000 S 240,000

Unamortized Premium/Discount on Bonds

Accrued Interest Payable

Net Pension Liability

s 142,682 $

95,417

2,586,031

$ 7,510 $ 135,172 S

95,417 92,402

1,391,728 t,194,303

92,402 92,402

Total Other Liabil ities $ 2,824,130 S 92,402 $ 1,494,6s5 S 1,421,877 $ 92,402

Total Governmental Activities Long-Term Liabilities $ 9,757.629 s 92.402 $ 1.873.154 s7.976.877 s 332.402

N. DEFERRED INFLOWS - UNAVAILABLE REVENUE (GOVERNMENTAL FUND STATEMENTS)

Unavailable revenue at year-end consisted of the following:

General Fund

Vhjor
Governmental Special

Fund RerrcnueFunù

Debt

Service Fund Total

Unavailable Net Propefty TaxRevenue S 2,M8,978 $

Unavailable State/Federal Revenues

$ 555,904 $ 352685 S 3,362,567

o.

Total Unar¡¿ilaHe Rer,enue 5 2,M8,978 $ $ 555,904 $ 357,685 S 3,362,567

REVENUE FROM LOCAL, INTERMEDIATE, AND INTERGOVERNMENTAL SOURCES

During the current year, revenues from local and intermediate sources consisted of the following:

DESCRIPTION
General

Fund

Ìl{ajor
Gorrcrnmental

Fund

Special

Rerænue

Funù

Deh
Service

Fhnd Total

Property Talas
Penalty & Interest on Ta)€s

Other Toas
Licenses and Permits

lntergovemnrental Revenue

Charges for Services

Fines

Investment Income

Other

$ 3,481,689 $
89,412

4,874

103,070

539,069

103,096

1 1))
203,408

s 790,276 g 512,296 $

- (51,069)

360,693

1,446,515

277,506

196,946

2,193

92,561

4,784,267

38,343

4,874

360,693

1,549,595

816,575

300,042

6,087

295,969

182

TOTAL s 4,528,340 $

52
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P. LITIGATION

The Counfy is exposed to various risks oflosses related to torts; theft of damage to, and destruction ofassets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The County is not aware of any pending legal actions
including unasserted claims that would require a material settlement as of July 22,2019.

A. CONSTRUCTION AND OTHER SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The County, as of December 31, 2018, has not incurred or made any commitments and/or contingencies in connection
with construction or other areas of significance.

R. SUBSEQUENTEVENTS

In preparing the basic financial statements, County administration has evaluated events and transactions for potential
recognition or disclosure through July 22,2019 the date this Annual Financial Report was issued. No material
subsequent events had occurred in the period of December 3 I , 20 I I through that date.

S. RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS

The County did not incur any material reportable related parly transactions or balances as of and during the year ended
December 31,2018.

T. FUND BALANCE/NET POSITION ADJUSTMENT
The County did not make a prior period adjustment or net position adjustment during the year ended December 31,
2018.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
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EXHIBIT E-I
JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -

BUDGET AND ACTUAL . GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2OI8

Data

Control

Codes
Budgeted Amounts

Actual
Amounts

(BUDGET

Variance With
Final Budget
Positive or
(Negative)Original Final BASIS

RECEIPTS:

Taxes:
5l l0 Property Taxes
5180 Other Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5510 Fines
56 l0 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Receipts

DISBURSEMENTS:

Current:
0100 General Government
0120 Judicial
0130 Executive
0140 Elections
0150 FinancialAdministration
0190 Other General Government Functions
0200 Public Safety
0230 Corrections
0290 Other Public Safety
0400 Health and Welfare

6030 Total Disbursements

I 100 Excess (Dehciency) of Receipts Over (Under)
Disbursements

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7915 Transfers In
891 I Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Cash Balance

0100 Cash Balance - January I (Beginning)

3000 Cash Balance - December 3l (Ending)

3,809,782 $

4,500
95,000

I I 1,700

461,000
75,000

3,300
I 15,813

3,809,782 $

4,500
95,000

I 1 1,700

461,000
75,000
3,300

I I 5,813

3,584,01I $

6,388

88,062
119,569
554,469
97,647

3,722

173,352

$ (22s,77 t)
1,888

(6,938)

7,869
93,469
22,64'7

422

57,539

4,676,095 4,676,09s 4,627,220 (48,875)

562,772

1,029,721

t38,026
55,860

195,605

408,783

1,952,418
I1,000

251,287
286,787

560,933

1,029,721

138,026
55,860

I 95,605
4t0,t2s

1,952,915
11,000

251,287
286,787

431,252

93 8,010
100,8 l 5

45,365
t93,196
365,786

t,943,648
9,375

244,822
192,373

129,681

9t,7lt
37,211
10,495

2,409
44,339

9,267

1,625

6,465
94,414

4,892,259 4,892,259 4,464,642 427,617

(216,164) (216,164) 162,578 378,742

100,000

(201,624)
100,000

(201,624)
257,725

( 196,718)

157,725

4,906

(101,624) (101,624) 61,007 t62,631

541,373

$ 3,404,246 $ 3,404,246 $ 3,945,619 S 541,373

(3 l 7,788)

3,722,034

(3 17,788)

3,722,034

223,585

3,722,034

The notes to the hnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT E-2JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS

TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

FY 2018
PlanYear 201'7

FY 2017
Plan Year 2016

FY 2016
Plan Year 2015

FY 2015
Plan Year 2014

A. Total Pension Liability

Service Cost

Interest (on the Total Pension Liability)

Changes of Benefit Terms

Difference between Expected and Actual Experience

Changes of Assumptions

Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions

Net change in Total Pension Liability

Total Pension Liability - Beginning

Total Pension Liability - Ending

B. Total Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions - Employer

Contriubtions - Employee

Net Investment Income

Benefrt Payments, Including Refunds of Employee Contributions

Administrative Expense

Other

Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning

Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending

C. Net Pension Liability

D. Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total
Pension Liability

$ 16,204,782 $ ts,978,448 $ 15,377,975 $ 14,86s,892

$ 527,704 S

225,674

1,944,599

(1,026,184)

(e,e82)

(3,750)

512,991 $

221,664

938,446

(970,947)

(r0,193)

(36, l 54)

471,943 S

203,1s4

42,533

(893,08 l)
(e,222)

(98,865)

449,846

190,844

84 r,086

(8ee,1 e0)

(e,73e)

72,862

$ 1,658,061 $

13,3 52,418

$ 488,660 $

1,293,084

450,438 $

1,224,946

(l 03,963)

39,999

(970,947)

423,041 S

1,1 89,1 40

(8 1,s r 6)

(299,393)

l'73,892

(893,08 l)

407,102

I,129,085

48,325

(89e, r 90)

(612,517)

83,291

(1,026,184)

$ 226,334 $

15,978,448

640,473 S

ts,337,97 5

512,083 $

14,865,892

685,322

14,1 80,570

655,807 $

12,696,611

(283,538) $

12,980,149

645,709

12,334,440

$ 15,010,479 $ 13,352,418 $ 12,696,611 $ 12,980,149

$ r,194,303 $ 2,626,030 $ 2,681,364 $ r,885,743

92.63% 83.57%

69.17%

82.56% 87.31o/o

E. Covered Payroll $ 3,223,919 $ 3,166,627 g 2,902,204 S 2,726,34s

F. Net Pension Liability as â Percentâge of Covered Payroll 37.05% 82.93o/o 9239%

Note: GASB 68, Paragraph 46, aand b requires that the data in this schedule be presented for the time period covered by the measurement
date rather than the governmental entityrs current fiscal year.

Note: Only four years of data are presented in accordance with GASBS #68, paragraph 138. "The information for all periods for the l0-year
schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be available initially. In these cases, during the
transition period, that information should be presented for as many years as are available. The schedules should not include information that
is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement."
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EXHIBIT E-3JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CONTzuBUTIONS

TEXAS COUNTY & DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEM

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2OI8

2018 2017 2016 2015

Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially Determined
Contributions

Contribution Defi ciency (Excess)

Covered Employee Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage ofCovered Employee Payroll

$ 487,951 $

(487,e51)

527,704 $

(s27,704)

512,991 $

(512,ee1)

471,898

(47r,898)

$ $ $ $

$ 3,1 13,915 $

15.67%

3,224,158 S

16.36%

3,166,627 S

16.20o/o

2,902,204

16.26%

Note: GASB 68, Paragraph 8l requires that the data in this schedule be presented as ofthe governmental entity's respective fiscal years as

opposed to the time periods covered by the measurement dates ending December 3l for the respective fìscal years.

Note: In accordance with GASB 68, Paragraph 138, the years ofdata presented this reporting period are those for which data is available.
"The information for all periods for the 1O-year schedules that are required to be presented as required supplementary information may not be
available initially. In these cases, during the transition period, that information should be presented for as many years as are available. The
schedules should not include information that is not measured in accordance with the requirements of this Statement."
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JONES COLTNTY

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2018

Valuation Date: Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of
December 31 and become effective in January 13 months later

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period 1.8 years

Asset Valuation Method

Inflation

Salary Increases

Investment Rate of Return

Retirement Age

Mortality

Other Information:

Entry age

Level percentage of payroll, closed

5-yr smoothed market

3.0%

Varies by age and service. 4.9%o average over career including inflation.

8.0010, net of investment expenses, including inflation

Members who are eligible for service retirement are assumed to commence
receiving benefit payments based on age. The average age at service
retirement for recent retirees is 61.

In the 2015 actuarial valuation, assumed life expectancies were adjusted as

a result of adopting a new projection scale (l l0% of the MP-2014
Ultimate Scale) for 2014 and later. Previously Scale AA had been used.

The base table is the RP-2000 table projected with Scale AA to 2014.

There were no benefit changes during the year.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL SCHEDULES
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JONES COLINTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 31,2018

Data

Control

Codes

212

Technology

213

Capital

Murder

Fund

215

Courthouse

Security

216

Records

Management

JP

2010

2120

2t40

2300

2000

2601

2600

1010

1050

105 I

1260

I 390

I 000

3450

3480

3490

3530

3545

3590

3000

ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)

Due from Other Govemments

Due from Others

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured

Accrued Interest Payable

Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Other Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Expenditures for Equipment

Other Committed Fund Balance

Other Assigned Fund Balance

$ 4,387 $ (176,833) $ 5,489 $ 33,964

176,833

140

$ 4,527 $ $ 5,733 $ 34,054

5,733 34,054

5,733 34,054

$ 5,733 $ 34,054

90244

$$$$

4,527

Total Fund Balances 4,527

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances S 4,527 $

The notes to the hnancial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITF-l (Cont'd)

217

District

Attorney

Special

218

County

Attorney

Pretrial

2t9

LEOSE

Funds

22t
Road &
Bridge

Pct I

222

Road &
Bridge

Pct2

223

Road &
Bridge

Pct 3

224

Road &
Bridge

Pct 4

231

Lateral

Road

Pct I

$ 1,180 $ t36 $ 7'17,669 $

1l1,082

(5,911)

8,281

6,685

488,638 $
111,092

(5,9 I 1)

8,281

6,694

615,1I I $

I I1,082

(5,91l)

8,281

6,684

40,0859,683 S 277,570 $

- I 11,092

- (s,911)

- 8,281

- 6,684

$

$ 1,180 $ 136 $ 9,683 I 397,706 $ 897,806 8 608,774 g 735,247 $ 40,085

$ $ $ 19,459 S 7,225 $ 657 $ 5,769 $

23,359 l3l,0g7

19,459 30,594 131,744 5,769

l05,l7l l05,l7l 105,171 105,171

105,171 l05,l7l 105,171 l05,l7l

9,683 40,085

1,180 136

273,076 762,051 37 t,gsg 624,307

1,180 136 9,683 273,076 762,051 371,859 624,307 40,095

$ 1,180 $ 136 $ 9,683 S 397,706 $ 897,806 S 608,7745 735,247 $ 40,085

6t



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 3I, 2018

Data

Control

Codes

232

Lateral

Road

Pct2

Lateral

Road

Pct 3

234

Lateral

Road

Pct 4

237

Miscellaneous

Funds

l0l0

I 050

t05I

1260

l 390

I 000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)

Due from Other Governments

Due from Others

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured

Accrued Interest Payable

Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Other Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Expenditures for Equipment

Other Committed Fund Balance

Other Assigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

$ 37,619 $ 3,430 $ 3,421 $

$ 37,619 S 3,430 S 3,421 $

2010

2120

2140

2300

2000

260t

2600

3250

3280

3290

3430

3445

3590

3000

$ $ $ 42$

42

37,619 3,430 3,379

3',7,619 3,430 3,379

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances S 37,619 $ 3,430 $ 3,421 $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBITF-l (Cont'd)

239

Emergency

Management

Fund

240

Jury

Fund

241

Security

Officer

Fund

242

EForce

Grant

24s

Law

Library

Fund

248

Juvenile

Probation

Local

250

Juvenile Prob

Basic

Grant

25t
Juvenile Prob

Community

Programs

s 13,818 $

9,920

78,753 $
71,410

(3,800)

5,324

150

19,980 $ (123,836) $ 16,970 $

t23,836

350

$ 7,403 $ 6,546

g 23,738 $ 151,837 $ 19,980 $ s 17,320 $ 8 7,403 $ 6,546

$ 2,500 $ 337 $ -$ $ 206 $ $ $

2,500 337 206

67,610

67,610

7,403 6,546

l7,ll4

83,890 19,980

21,238

21,238 83,890 19,990

s 17,320 $

7,403 6,546

$ 7,403 $ 6,546

l7,ll4

$ 23,738 $ 151,837 $ 19,980 $

63



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 3I, 20I8

Data

Control

Codes

253

Juvenile

Probation

N Grant

254

Juvenile Prob

Mental Health

Services

255

Permanent

Improvement

Fund

256

Rifle Res.

Body Armor

Grant

l0l0

l 050

1051

1260

I 390

I 000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)

Due from Other Governments

Due from Others

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured

Accrued Interest Payable

Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Other Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Expenditures for Equipment

Other Committed Fund Balance

Other Assigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

$ 1,603 $ 2,164 S 397,922 $

- 71,410

- (3,800)

- 5,323

$ 1,603 s 2,164 $ 470,855 $

$ $ $$2010

2120

2140

2300

2000

2601

2600

3250

3280

3290

3430

3445

3590

3000

67,610

67,610

1,603

2,164 403,245

1,603 2,164 403,245

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 1,603 S 2,164 $ 470,g55 $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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EXHIBIT F-l (Cont'd)

257

BPV

Grant

258

County

Attorney

Hot Check

260

EMC

Grant

261

TDA
Grant

262

Hawley

Grant

2s9

Dist Attorney

& Employee

Salry Supp

263

District

Clerk

Technology

264

Dist Clerk

Court Records

Preservation

$ (1,452) $ 2,670 $ 490 $ 113 $ (19,250) $ (2,125) $ 9,941 $ 15,230

1,452 19,250 2,125

226 158 100

$ $ 2,896 $ 490 $ l13 $ $ $ 10,099 $ 15,330

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

490 ll3

2,896 10,099 15,330

2,896 490 113 10,099 15,330

$ $ 2,896 $ 490 S 1r3 $ $ $ 10,099 $ 15,330
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER3I,2OIS

Data

Control

Codes

265

Juvenile

Probation

E Grant

266

District

Clerk Records

Management

267

County

Clerk

A¡chives

268

County Clerk

Records

Management

l0l0

I 050

105 I

1260

I 390

I 000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)

Due from Other Governments

Due from Others

Total Assets

LIABTLITIES
Accounts Payable

Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured

Accrued Interest Payable

Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Other Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Expenditures for Equipment

Other Committed Fund Balance

Other Assigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

$ 63,999 $ 9,356 $ 88,220 $ 80,394

l8l 385 388

$ 63,999 $ 9,537 $ 88,605 $ 80,792

$ $ $

63,999 9,537 88,605 90,792

2010

2120

2140

2300

2000

2601

2600

3250

3280

3290

3430

3445

3s90

3000

$

63,999 9,537 88,605 80,782

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $ 63,999 $ 9,537 $ gg,605 $ g0,7g2

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
66



EXHIBIT F-l (Cont'd)

269

County Clerk

Vital
Statistics

270

District &
County Clerks

Tech Fund

271

Courthouse

Technology

Fund

272

Election

Services

Contract Fund

273

Juvenile Prob

Region-

alization

27s

County Jail

Project

Fund

288

Juvenile

Probation

Local

292

Adult

Probation

$ 909 $ 2,365 $ 53,504 $ $ (608) $ 42,408 $

608 89,055

$

$

$ 20$

20

909 $ 2,365 $ 53,504 $ $

$

$ 131,463 $

$ $

$

$$ -$

131,463

889 2,365

53,504

2,365 53,504 131,463889

$ 909 $ 2,365 $ 53,504 $ $ $ 131,463 $ $

67



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
DECEMBER 3I,2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

243 Total

Nonmajor

Special

Revenue Funds

579

Interest &
Sinking

Fund

580

PFC Interest

& Sinking

Fund

1010

I 050

l05l

1260

r 390

I 000

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes (credit)

Due from Other Governments

Due from Others

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable

Bonds, Notes, Loans Payable - Matured

Accrued Interest Payable

Advance from Other Funds

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable Revenue - Property Taxes

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

FUND BALANCES
Federal or State Funds Grant Restriction

Retirement of Long-Term Debt

Other Restricted Fund Balance

Capital Expenditures for Equipment

Other Committed Fund Balance

Other Assigned Fund Balance

Total Fund Balances

$ -$ 2,889,036 $
587,148

(31,244)

456,930

39,069

340,231 $

374,955

(17,270)

29,823

$ $ 3,940,939 S 727,739 $

s 36,215 $ $

154,446

190,661

20 l0

2120

2140

2300

2000

2601

2600

3250

3280

3290

3430

3445

3590

3000

$

145,000

54,615

199,615

555,904 3s7,685

555,904 357,685

241,814

337,246

405,409

2,188,667

21,239

370,054 (199,615)

3,194,374 370,054 (199,615)

4000 Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows & Fund Balances $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
68

8 3,940,939 S 727,739 $



EXHIBIT F-I

Total

Nonmajor

Debt Service

Funds

Total

Nonmajor

Governmental

Funds

$ 340,231 $ 3,229,267

374,955 962,103

(17,270) (48,514)

29,823 486,753

- 39,069

8 727,739 S 4,668,678

$ $ 36,215

145,000

54,615

154,446

145,000

54,615

199,615 390,276

357,685 913,589

357,685 913,599

170,439

241,814

170,439

337,246

405,409

2,188,667

21,238

170,439 3,364,913

s 727,739 $ 4,669,678

69



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENTOF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3 I, 2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

212

Technology

213

Capital

Murder

Fund

215

Courthouse

Security

216

Records

Management

JP

REVENUES:

Taxes:
51 l0 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5200 Licenses and Permits
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5510 Fines
56 l0 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0120 Judicial
0140 Elections
0200 Public Safety
0230 Corrections
0290 Other Public Safety

Public Works:
0310 Highways and Streets

Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures

1100 p¡ççe5s (Defîciency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale ofReal and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In
891 I Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning)

330,386
2,103

4,537 JJ ,529 2,129

2,81 I 330,396 3,715

23,335

2,gll 330,396 23,335 3,715

1,726 (13,806) (1,586)

13,646

13,646

$ $$$

5t94,537

I0,386

I

8 26

1,726

2,801

(160)

5,893

(1,586)

35,640

3000 Fund Balance - December 3l (Ending) 8 4,527 $

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
70

$ 5,733 $ 34,054



EXHIBIT F-2 (Cont'd)

217

District

Attorney

Special

218

County

Attorney

Pretrial

219

LEOSE
Funds

22t
Road &
Bridge

Pct I

222

Road &
Bridge

Pct2

223

Road &
Bridge

Pct 3

224

Road &
Bridge

Pct 4

23t
Lateral

Road

Pct I

$$$ $ 149,508 $ 149,508 $ 149,508 $ 149,508 $

- 5,724
2,440

90,693
47,343
41,260
49,237

349
500

90,000
175,5 85

41,952
49,237

556
41,000

90,000
21,550
41,952
49,236

381
t7,694

90,000
30,215
41,952
49,236

472
8,665

8,826

8,8265,724 2,440 378,890 547,838 370,321 370,048

5,898

1,07 |

57 5,303 472,925 547 ,993 398,08 I 1,457

5,898 1,071 575,303 472,925 547,993 398,081

(174) 1,369 (196,413) 74,913 (177,672) (28,033)

1,457

7,369

1,000
20,000

29,228
20,00020,000 20,000

20,000 20,000 21,000 49,228

(174)

310

1,369

8,314

(176,413)

449,489

94,913

667,138

(156,672)

528,531

21,195

603,112

7,369

32,716I,180

$ 1,180 $ 136 $ 9,6838 273,076$ 762,051 $ 371,8595 624,307 $ 40,085

7l



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

232

Lateral

Road

Pct2

233

Lateral

Road

Pct 3

234

Lateral

Road

Pct 4

237

Miscellaneous

Funds

REVENUES:

Taxes:
5l l0 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5200 Licenses and Permits
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5510 Fines
5610 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0120 Judicial
0140 Elections
0200 Public Safety
0230 Corrections
0290 Other Public Safety

Public Works:
0310 Highways and Streets

Debt Service:
0710 Principal on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures

1 I 00 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale ofReal and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In
891I Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - January 1 (Beginning)

8,826 (5,414) (3,931)

$$$$

8,826 8,826 8,826

8,826 8,826 8,826

14,240 12,757

14,240 12,757

8,826

28,793

(5,414)

8,844

(3,93 I )

7,310

3000 Fund Balance - December 3l (Ending)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
1')

$ 37,619 $ 3,430 $ 3,379 $



EXHIBIT F-2 (Cont'd)

239

Emergency

Management

Fund

240

Jury

Fund

241

Security

Officer

Fund

242

EForce

Grant

245

Law

Library

Fund

248

Juvenile

Probation

Local

250

Juvenile Prob

Basic

Grant

251

Juvenile Prob

Community

Programs

$$$$$

224

g 96,122 $

21,509
) \)')

54
228

$

23,946 123,936 66,276 55,1s4
7,770

18,000

4t,946 120,435 123,836 7,770 224 66,276 55,154

24,383 64,343 52,053

105,714 36,777 6,258

123,836

3 1,3 50

31,350 105,714 36,777 123,836 6,258 24,383 64,343 52,053

10,596 14,721 (36,777) 1,5t2 (24,159) 1,933 3,101

10,642 55,647 24,159

24,159

(13 ,646)
10,642 (13,646) 55,647

21,238 1,075

82,815

18,870

1,1 l0

1,933

5,470

3,101

3,445

1,512

15,602

$ 21,238 $ 83,890 $ 19,980 $ $ l7,ll4 $ $ 7,403 $ 6,546

IJ



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

253

Juvenile

Probation

N Grant

254

Juvenile Prob

Mental Health

Services

255

Permanent

Improvement

Fund

256

Rifle Res.

Body Armor

Grant

REVENUES:

Taxes:
5 I l0 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5200 Licenses and Permits
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5510 Fines
5610 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0120 Judicial
0140 Elections
0200 Public Safety
0230 Corrections
0290 Other Public Safety

Public Works:
0310 Highways and Streets

Debt Service:
071 0 Principal on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures

I 100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale ofReal and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In
891 1 Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning)

$ $ s 96,122 S

289

531 3,730

531 96,411 3,730

68,583

867 3,730

86',7 68,583 3,730

531 (867) 27,828

531

1,072

(867)

3,031

2',7,828

375,417

3000 Fund Balance - December 31 (Ending)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
'74

$ 1,603 s 2,164 $ 403,245 $



EXHIBIT F-2 (Cont'd)

257

BPV

Grant

258

County

Attorney

Hot Check

260

EMC

Grant

26t

TDA
Grant

262

Hawley

Grant

259

Dist Attorney

& Employee

Salry Supp

263

District

Clerk

Technology

264

Dist Clerk

Court Records

Preservation

$$$$$$$ $

1,452 4,511 22,750 66,163
2,442

22,750 66,163 2,442

2,424 1,660

1,452 2,424 4,511 1,660

1,210 6,061 2,316

22,750 66,163

22,750 66,163 2,316

126

1,452

1,452 1,210 6,061

1,214 (1,550) 1,660

1,214

1,682

( 1,550)

2,040 ll3
t26

9,973

1,660

13,670

$ $ 2,896 $ 490 $ 113 $ $ $ 10,099 $ 15,330

75



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FLINDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

265

Juvenile

Probation

E Grant

266

District

Clerk Records

Management

267

County

Clerk

Archives

268

County Clerk

Records

Management

REVENUES:

Taxes:
5l l0 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5200 Licenses and Permits
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5510 Fines
5610 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0120 Judicial
0140 Elections
0200 Public Safety
0230 Conections
0290 Other Public Safety

Public Works:
0310 Highways and Streets

Debt Service:
0710 Principalon Debt

6030 Total Expenditures

I100 Excess (Defrciency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FTNANCTNG SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale ofReal and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In
8911 Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning)

$

3,063 33,755 34,213

48
6,250

6,250 3,063 33,755 34,26t

1,841 4,850

23,109

23,109 1,841 4,850

( 16,859) 1,222 33,755 29,411

$$$

(l8,744) (19,442)

(18,744) (19,442)

(t 6,859)

80,858

1,222

8,315

15,011

73,594

9,969

70,8 l3

3000 Fund Balance - December 3l (Ending)

The notes to the frnancial statements are an integral part of this statement
76

$ 63,999 $ 9,537 $ 88,605 $ 80,782



EXHIBIT F-2 (Cont'd)

269

County Clerk

Vital

Statistics

270

District &
County Clerks

Tech Fund

271

Courthouse

Technology

Fund

272

Election

Services

Contract Fund

273

Juvenile Prob

Region-

alization

275

County Jail

Project

Fund

288

Juvenile

Probation

Local

292

Adult

Probation

$ $ $$$$ -$

- 1,042 412,792

$

544 rt2

544 lt2 1,042 412,792

13, I 33

421
2,755

1,042 499

42t 13,133 2,755 1,042 499

123 tt2 (13,133) (2,755) 412,293

20,000
(306,255) (6,325)

20,000 (306,255) (6,325)

123

766

l12

2,253

6,86',1

46,637

(2,755)

2,755

106,038

25,425

(6,325)

6,325

$ 889 $ 2,365 $ 53,504 $ $ $ 131,463 $ $

77



JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2OI8

Data

Control

Codes

243 Total

Nonmajor

Special

Revenue Funds

579

Interest &
Sinking

Fund

580

PFC Interest

& Sinking

Fund

REVBNUES:

Taxes:
5l l0 Property Taxes
5190 Penalty and Interest on Taxes
5200 Licenses and Permits
5300 Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants
5400 Charges for Services
5510 Fines
56 I 0 Investment Earnings
5700 Other Revenue

5020 Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES:

Current:
0100 General Government
0120 Judicial
0140 Elections
0200 Public Safety
0230 Corrections
0290 Other Public Safety

Public V/orks:

0310 Highways and Streets
Debt Service:

0710 Principal on Debt

6030 Total Expenditures

I 100 Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over (Under)
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):
7912 Sale ofReal and Personal Property
7915 Transfers In
891 I Transfers Out (Use)

7080 Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)

1200 Net Change in Fund Balance

0100 Fund Balance - January I (Beginning)

3000 Fund Balance - December 3l (Ending)

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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3,166,680 461,409

81,716
508,258

2,755
123,836
171,478
24,406

2,143,019

481,295 75,399

3,055,468 481,295 75,399

tt1,2t2 (19,886) (75,399)

$ s 790,276 $

360,693
1,446,515

277,s06
196,946

2,193
92,561

512,296 S

(51,069)

182

30,228
204,094

(364,412)
- 96,542

(130,090) 96,542

21,143

(220,758)

( I 8,878)

3,213,252

( I 9,886)

389,940

$ s 3,194,374 $ 370,054 $ (199,615)



EXHIBIT F-2

Total

Nonmajor

Debt Service

Funds

Total

Nonmajor

Governmental

Funds

I 512,296 $
(51,069)

182

1,302,572
(51,069)
360,693

1,446,515
277,506
196,946

2,365
92,561

461,409 3,629,099

81,716
508,258

2,755
123,836
171,478
24,406

2,l43,olg

556,694 556,694

556,694 3,612,162

(95,285) 15,927

96,542
30,228

300,636
(364,412)

96,542 (33,548)

1,257

169,182

(17,621)

3,382,434

I 170,439 $ 3,364,913
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EXHIBIT F-3

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

ALL AGENCY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I,2OI8

BALANCE
JANUARY I

20t7 ADDITIONS DEDUCTIONS

BALANCE
DECEMBER 3I

2018

AGENCY FUND-STATE FEES/BONDS
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due From Other Governments

Due from Others

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments

TOTAL AGENCY FUNDS
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Due From Other Governments

Due From Others

Total Assets

Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments

Due to Others

Total Liabilities

$ 96,344 $ 56,994 $ 96,344 $ 56,994

$ 87,s74 $

833

7,937

56,994 $ 87,574 $

833

7,937

56,994

$ 96,344 $ 56,994 $ 96,344 $ 56,994

AGENCY FUND-ADULT PROBATION
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments

AGENCY FUND-DEPARTMENTAL CASH ACCOUNTS
Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 696,570

Liabilities:
Due to Other Governments S 287,944
Due to Others 408,626

Total Liabilities

$

$

$ 399,154 $ 371,810 S 27,344

$ 399,154 $ 371,810 $ 27,344

$ 12,630,s97 $ t2,15t,99s S 1,175,172

$ 12,355,165 $

275,432

t2,0s9,900 $

92,095

583,209

s91,963

$ 696,570 $ 12,630,597 $ 12,t5t,99s S t,l7s,t72

$ 784,144 $

833

7,937

13,086,745 $ 12,6rt,379 $

833

7,937

1,259,510

s 792,914 $ 13,086,745 $ 12,620,149 $ 1,259,510

$ 384,288 $

408,626

r2,81 I,3 l3 $

275,432

t2,528,0s4 $

92,09s

667,547

s9r,963

$ 792,914 $ 13,086,745 $ 12,620,149 $ 1,259,510

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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James E. Rodgers and Gompaf,y, P.C.
Gertified Public Accountants

20 Southwest Third Street. PO Box 669 . Hamlin, Texas 79520. Tel: 325-576-2356 . Fax: 325-576-3525
E-mai I : rodgerscpa@att. net

Member of Texas Society of CPA's and American Institute of CPA's
Richard E. Rodgers CPA . Gerald L. Rodgers CPA

Jtuly 22,2019

Independent Auditor's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing

Standards

Honorable County Judge and Commissioners Comprising
The Commissioners Court of Jones County
Anson, Texas 79501

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Jones CountSr, Texas, as of and for the year ended

December 31,2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Jones County,
Texas's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated July 22,2019.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Jones County, Texas's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Jones County, Texas's internal control. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness ofJones County, Texas's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements

will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough
to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identif, all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or,
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identifu any deficiencies in internal
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been

identified.
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James E. Rodgers and Gompâny, P.C.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Jones County, Texas's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards and therefore are not described in the accompanying schedule of finding and
questioned costs.

County's Response to Finding

Jones County was not required to issue a response since no findings were identified in our audit and therefore is
not described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses. Jones County's response would not have

been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements if the response had been

required and, accordingly, we would not have expressed an opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the

results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on

compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not
suitable for any other purpose.

Respectfully submitted,

f*E'rùNUi'*$, 
Gry-.t

James E. Rodgers and Company, P.C
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2018

I. Summary of the Auditor's Results

1. Type of report issued on the financial statements - Unmodified opinion.

2. Significant deficiencies in internal control - None / Significant deficiencies that were material
weaknesses - None.

3. Noncompliance, which is material to the financial statements - None

II. Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which Are Required to Be Reported in
Accordance with Generally Accepted Government Audíting Standards (GAGAS).

Finding 2018-001:

^. Condition: N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

N/A

b. Criteria

c. Cause:

d. Effect:

e. Recommendation:

f. County Response:
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JONES COUNTY, TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF DELINQUENT TAXES RECEIVABLE
FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 3I, 2018

Last l0 Years Ended

December 3l Maintenance Debt Service

Assessed/Appraised

Value for

Tax Purposes

Tax Rates

2009 and prior years

20t0

2011

2012

2013

20r4

2015

2016

2017

2018 (Fiscal year under audit)

1000 TOTALS

Various

0.61590

0.6t464

0.57100

0.57900

0.57200

059466

0.60932

0.62867

0.62276

Various

0.00000

0,00000

0.08900

0.08100

0.07101

0.06698

0.07064

0.07133

0.07196

$ Various

621,810,521

622,817,223

667,267,168

686,297,0s3

745,952,999

747,774,622

735,175,886

730,096,619

742,760,660
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EXHIBIT H-I

Beginning

Balance

January l,2018

Current

Year's

Total Levy

Maintenance

Collections

Debt Service

Collections

Entire

Year's

Adjustments

Ending

Balance

December 3 1, 201 8

$ I l9,l t5 $

15,144

17,166

27,851

40,609

86,768

lll,73l

175,079

2,535,870

5,160,092

3,655 $

1,586

1,820

2,718

4,595

10,351

18,055

46,710

2,104,455

2,016,027

433

674

1,330

2,lll

5,689

254,157

247,262

$ $ 7,620 $ 107,840

13,367

15,053

24,385

34, I 08

74,432

90,736

121,078

170,919

2,896,803

l9l

293

315

1,232

655

829

1,602

6,339

$ 3,129,333 $ 5,160,092 $ 4,209,972 $ 5 I 1,656 $ 19,076 $ 3,549,721
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Date of Organization

Date Current Courthouse Built

Form of Government

Ärea in Square Miles

Number of Full Time County Employees

School Districts With Property Located in Jones County:
Abilene ISD
Anson ISD
Clyde CISD
Hamlin ISD
Hawley ISD
Lueders-Avoca ISD

County Population:
1900
1910
1920
1930
1940
1950
1990
2000
2003
2004

County Property Tax Rates:
2000
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2012
20t4
2015
2016
2018

7,053
24,299
22,323
24,233
23,378
22,147
16,490
20,785
19,911
19,726

2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010
2013
2015
2016
2018

19,544
19,497
19,257
19,197
18,961
20,202
20,037
19,983
19,994
19,817

JONES COUNTY, TEXAS
MISCELLANEOUS STATISTICS

December 31,2018

<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->
<- Census / Estimate->

<- Estimate / Estimate->
<- Estimate / Estimate->

I 881

1910

Commissioners' Court

937

70

l1
Merkel ISD
Paint Creek ISD
Roby CISD
Stamford ISD
Trent ISD

$0.63490
$0.66650
$0.61570
$0.s8000
$0.62000
$0.61s90
$0.66004
$0.64301
$0.66164
s0.67996
s0.69472

County Road Miles (TxDOT)-Centerline Miles
Earth and All-weather
Paved

Total

864
10
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